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The Group’s sales points span the whole nation, with footprints in all major cities such as Beijing, Shanghai,
Chongging, Tianjin, Guangzhou, Hong Kong and Macau. Such an extensive network enables the Group to
efficiently respond to customer needs and deepen its market penetration in China.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 2,317 retail outlets, comprising 2,128 concessionary
counters and 189 retail shops in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.
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Financial Highlights
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As a leader in China’s lingerie industry, Embry Group
continued to pursue sustainable development and
seized every opportunity arising from the changing
business environment.

F A B IERK TR IHEESE

ZF 75 SR BRI E i = R B A
BB IEEIRIS 15 B R e ...

fi




01
05
09
19
20
22
24
36

Contents

Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Awards In 2014

Corporate Social Responsibility
Directors and Senior Management

Corporate Governance Report

Report of the Directors

Independent Auditors’ Report
Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Statement of Financial Position

,Notes to Financial Statements



EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Corporate Information

Directors
Executive Directors
NGOK Ming Chu (Chairman)
CHENG Pik Ho Liza

(Chief Executive Officer)
LU Qun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
LAU Siu Ki (alias, Kevin Lau)

LEE Kwan Hung

LEE T. S. (alias, Lee Tien-sheng)

Board Committees

Audit Committee

LAU Siu Ki (alias, Kevin Lau)
(Chairman)

LEE Kwan Hung

LEET. S. (alias, Lee Tien-sheng)

Remuneration Committee

LEE Kwan Hung (Chairman)
CHENG Pik Ho Liza

LAU Siu Ki (alias, Kevin Lau)
LEET. S. (alias, Lee Tien-sheng)

Nomination Committee

LEE T. S. (alias, Lee Tien-sheng)
(Chairman)

CHENG Pik Ho Liza

LAU Siu Ki (alias, Kevin Lau)

LEE Kwan Hung

CHENG Pik Ho Liza

SO Ka Man

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

7th Floor, Wyler Centre Il
200 Tai Lin Pai Road

Kwai Chung, New Territories
Hong Kong

Hang Seng Bank Limited
Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited
Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking

Corporation Limited
Bank of China

— Shenzhen Shangbu Branch
China Construction Bank

— Shenzhen Buxin Branch
China Construction Bank

— Shenzhen Tianbei Branch
China Merchants Bank

— Shenzhen Dongmen Branch
China Merchants Bank

— Shenzhen Shekou Branch

1

As to Hong Kong law:
Chiu & Partners

As to PRC law:
GFE Law Office

Ernst & Young

22nd Floor, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and
Transfer Office in the
Cayman Islands

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office in
Hong Kong
Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

iPR Ogilvy Limited

www.embrygroup.com

1388



b

.g.

AR

ST
!

: .t.'_,.

R T

¥

s E e

: .ﬁ: g







Embry continues with its

MULTI-BRAND

STRATEGY

and further enhances the competitiveness of its core brands
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NGOK Ming Chu
Chairman of the Group

It is my great pleasure to present the audited annual results of Embry Holdings
Limited for the year ended 31 December 2014 on behalf of the Board of Directors.

In 2014, global economic conditions remained uncertain. While the United States’
economy was growing at a steady pace, the member states of the European Union
fell behind in economic recovery. Affected by the external economic environment,
China embarked on economic restructuring and entered a period of “new normal”
of more moderate growth. The Chinese government’s austerity measures and
policies against extravagance and luxury also dampened consumer sentiment in the
short term. Meanwhile, reduced government interventions in foreign exchange
resulted in large “depreciate-appreciate-depreciate” fluctuations in the Renminbi’s
exchange rate against the US dollar during the year, affecting overall economic

activities.
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The country’s underwear retail sector also faced challenges arising from the complicated economic
conditions. Weak consumer sentiment further slowed the growth of the entire sector. However, ongoing
urbanisation, improving per capita income and rising living standards continued to boost consumer
spending and unleash the consumption potential in the third- and fourth-tier cities, thus laying the solid
foundations for the development of the country’s consumer market and the healthy development of the
underwear retail sector in the long term.

As a leader in China’s lingerie industry, Embry Group continued to pursue sustainable development by
taking a prudent approach to business planning and by adopting a flexible multi-brand strategy. It also
fully capitalised on its optimised nationwide sales network, took on multiple market challenges with
optimism, and seized every opportunity arising from the changing business environment.

Building and developing its brands is the key to the Group’s success. Specifically, the Group forged ahead
with a multi-brand strategy and reallocated its brands’ resources flexibly. Such strategic advantages were
manifested in the current challenging business environment. E-BRA, IADORE and IVU, which have been
introduced to the market in recent years, played a critical role in the growth reported in 2014 as they
mitigated the impact of the weak consumption of mid-priced and high-end underwear products under our
major brands. Such products enabled steady development of our business and broadened our client base.

The Group adapted to changes in the market environment. It formulated flexible marketing and
promotional plans, and strategically expanded its retail network in order to meet the rising market demand
and maintain its operational efficiency. These measures will be able to support the healthy development
of the business. During the year, the Group recorded a net increase of 45 retail outlets to 2,317 outlets in
total at the end of December 2014. The Group’s retail network spanned across more than 260 cities in
China and even reached the third- and fourth-tier cities.

In 2014, the Group reported growth in both revenue and core earnings. The revenue for the full year
amounted to HK$2,383,127,000. Excluding losses from foreign exchange, the Group’s net profits were
HK$195,868,000.

To thank our shareholders for their long-term support, the Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK8.00 cents per share and a special dividend of HK2.00 cents per share.

For 2015, the prospect for the world’s economic development remained complicated in light of the
recurrence of the Greek debt crisis and persistent currency fluctuations. In China, the economy is
complicated by its restructuring and thus continues to face the risk of a downtrend in both the long and
short term. The country’s ongoing urbanisation is progressing at a steady pace and its per capita income
and living standards are improving. This will boost the economic growth in the long term, favouring the
expansion of the consumer market.
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The Group will continue to take on the challenges posed by market changes via a more pragmatic and
prudent approach to setting and implementing its development strategies. The Group will continue with
its multi-brand strategy and further enhance the competitiveness of its core brands. In the forthcoming
year, the Group will focus on developing E-BRA and JADORE, while improving market share by
accelerating the market penetration in the third- and fourth-tier cities. Having adjusted its retail network,
the Group is well-positioned to stringently control sales expenses with the aim of enhancing overall
operating efficiency. The Group expects that the number of retail outlets in 2015 will approximate that
achieved at the end of 2014.

The Group will actively conduct promotional campaigns, enhance its capability in research and
development in innovative products, and will optimise its product mix to meet diverse consumer needs.
In addition, the Group will continue to enhance its modernised production to raise efficiency and to
ensure that the production capacity satisfies the growing demands. In the first quarter of 2014, the second
phase of the Group’s plant in Jinan, Shandong commenced its trial production as scheduled, yielding
satisfactory performance and efficiency. The construction of the production base in Changzhou, Jiangsu is
progressing smoothly, and will be completed for relocation by the first quarter of 2015.

| have assumed office for one year since 24 March 2014, and with the vigorous support of our employees,
the Group overcame challenges arising from the economic conditions. | would like to take this
opportunity to thank all of our employees for their contribution to the Group over the past year. Their
contribution has helped the Group achieve fruitful results. | would also like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our shareholders for their unwavering support, and appreciation of the Group’s aspirations
and development strategy. This year, we will enhance the performance of Embry Group to the best of our
ability, build a brighter future, and achieve better returns for our shareholders.

NGOK Ming Chu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2015



Embry closely monitors
the market conditions
while adopting flexible
and prudent development
strategies.
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Management
Discussion
and Analysis

In 2014, China’s economy continued its consistent growth
while ongoing urbanisation laid the solid foundations for its
long term economic development. Nevertheless, the
Chinese government’s austerity measures and policies
against extravagance and luxury dampened consumer
sentiment for a while, thus decelerating the growth of the
retail market. According to China’s National Bureau of
Statistics, the country’s gross domestic product grew by
7.4% to RMB63,646.3 billion in 2014. The growth rate
was 0.3 percentage point lower when compared to that in
20183, and led to a slowdown in the total retail sales in
2014,

Since the second quarter of 2014, the People’s Bank of
China gradually withdrew from its long established practice
of intervening in the market to allow a wider trading band
for Renminbi’s exchange rate against the US dollar. This

halted the consistent trend of Renminbi’s
appreciation against the US dollar, and increased
significantly the amplitude of fluctuation of the
exchange rate between the two currencies,
therefore somehow affecting the overall economic
activities. As a result, Embry’s financial results for
2014 were also affected despite the Group’s
prudent countermeasures to cope with these
changes in the market environment and the
increasing competition, such as adopting cautious
business development policies, flexible multi-brand
strategy and optimising sales network.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (the
“Current Year”), the Group’s revenue grew by
6.64% over that of the year ended 31 December
2013 (the “Prior Year”) to HK$2,383,127,000. Profit
attributable to owners of the Company dropped by
5.18% to HK$188,093,000. Earnings per share
decreased by 5.19% to HK45.14 cents (2013:
HK47.61 cents). Excluding the impact of foreign
exchange differences, the Group’s net profit grew
by 7.25% from the Prior Year to HK$195,868,000.

The Board of Directors of the Company resolved to
declare a final dividend of HK8.00 cents per share
(2013: HK8.00 cents) and a special dividend of
HK2.00 cents per share (2013: HK2.00 cents) for
the Current Year which, together with the interim
dividend of HK4.00 cents per share (2013: HK4.00
cents) distributed, will bring the total dividend for
the Current Year to HK14.00 cents per share.

Brand management

In 2014, consumers tended to be more cautious in
spending and were more price-conscious amid
weak consumer sentiment. Pursuing its multi-brand
strategy, the Group continued to allocate internal
resources flexibly and to focus on promoting
brands that have great market potential but lower
market penetration, such as E-BRA. In addition, the
Group invested resources in developing such new
brands as IADORE and IVU. Particularly, the male
underwear IVU successfully made its way to a
variety of high-end department stores since its trial
launch one year ago. With positive feedback from
consumers, the annual sales contributed over
HK$30 million, representing an encouraging result.

Apart from improving brand portfolio, the Group
also promoted and advertised its brands and
products more actively to enhance brand equity.
During the Current Year, the Group participated in

the Ninth Shenzhen International Brand Underwear
Fair and 2014 China International Intimate Apparel
Culture Week. At the fair, the Group received the
“Annual Public Service Award of China’s
Underwear Industry”. In addition, EMBRY FORM
won the “Annual Achievement Award of China’s
Underwear Industry”, FANDECIE clinched the
“Annual Top Ten Brands Award of China’s
Underwear Industry” and E-BRA took the “Annual
Fashion Brands Award of China’s Underwear
Industry”. During the second half of 2014, the
Group collaborated with the department stores
under Dashang Group in launching several product
presentations under the theme of “Delightful
Fashion and Exclusive Intimacy”, thus improving
our brand image in the public’s mind.

r—

e, .
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As the Internet and e-commerce became increasingly
popular, the Group constantly focused on enhancing
and maintaining the image of its various brands on the
Internet with a view to raising the awareness of the
brands during the Current Year. In terms of online
sales, the Group continued to adopt conservative
strategies by concentrating on sales of promotional and
online-only products, maintaining consistent online and
offline brand images.

Sales network

The Group was cautiously optimistic about the
market’s potential growth, and continued to efficiently
expand and optimise its sales network, so as to
achieve steady business development. As at 31
December 2014, the Group had 2,317 retail outlets in
total, including 2,128 concessionary counters and 189 stores. During the Current Year, there was a net
increase of 45 retail outlets of the Group, which was consistent with the annual target. Meanwhile, the
Group’s products were also available for sales through different online platforms.

Product design and research and development

The Group invested resources in the design, research and development of new products. The
improvement in patented designs enriched the value of its products which catered for consumer needs at
various levels.

During the Current Year, the Group launched a variety of well-received new collections, including:
EMBRY FORM's “Reborn Skin Series” ([ % — /L& 551/ ]) and “Tempting Image Series” ([ #6275 5 2751 |);
FANDECIE's “Neon Happiness Series”([ =48 5241 1 %751 |) and “Secret Garden Series” ([ B ZEE Z 5 |);
COMEFIT's “Invisible Body Toning Series” ([ 27558 55| |) and “Traceless Series” ([ 32§ /R %731 ]);
E-BRA’s “Endless Love Series” ([ #4315 % %%/ J) and “Glamorous and Dynamic Series” ([ 55 & /1 251/ ));
IADORE's “Eyelashes LACE Series” ([ B3 LACE %%/ ]) and “Shadow LACE Series” ([ J£% LACE 57| |);
LIZA CHENG's “Chanson Series” ([ &M %%/ J) and “Perfect Wedding Gown Series” ([ TEEBZ R K5 );
and IVU’s “Warm Velvet Series” ([ B&# %% 1) and “Autumn and Winter Cotton Series” ([ TA % RIBKE
ES N}

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 6 invention patents, 19 utility model patents, and 11 appearance
design patents registered in China and/or other parts of the world.

Production capacity

Currently, the Group has three production bases located respectively in Shenzhen, Jinan and Changzhou.
To satisfy development needs, the second phase of the Jinan plant in Shandong commenced its trial
production as scheduled in the first quarter of 2014, yielding satisfactory performance and efficiency. The
construction of a new production base in Changzhou is progressing smoothly and the relocation is
scheduled to begin by the first quarter of 2015 once completed.

The Group has been closely monitoring the changes in consumer demands, regularly reviewing capacity
allocation and flexibly deploying manpower and machine capacity to achieve better operating efficiency.
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Awards

During the Current Year, the Group was granted the “National Excellent Enterprise with Foreign
Investment — Quality Progress Award” and “National Excellent Enterprise with Foreign Investment

— Harmonious Labour Relationship Promotion Award” by China Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment and Shenzhen Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment in 2014. The Group also
won the title “National Excellent Enterprise with Credible Quality” by China Association for Quality
Inspection. In addition, the Group received the title “Three-Star Credibility Enterprise” from the Shanghai
Campaign Committee for “Credibility Enterprise” and Shanghai Association of Underwear Industry. In
terms of brand, EMBRY FORM was rated as the “Hong Kong Top Brand” by the Hong Kong Brand
Development Council and the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong for eight consecutive
years.

Human resources

Tense labour supply and implementation of the minimum wage policy in China have resulted in continuous
wage increase. The Group endeavored to retain an outstanding work force, through measures such as
organising training courses, improving employee benefits and enhancing staff loyalty, in order to improve
its overall operation efficiency to enhance its development strategy. The number of employees of the
Group increased to approximately 9,730 (2013: approximately 9,120). Total staff costs (including wages
and basic salaries, commissions, bonuses, contributions to the retirement benefits scheme and equity-
settled share option expense and excluding directors’ and chief executive’s remunerations) for the Current
Year was HK$715,717,000 (2013: HK$633,032,000).

Revenue

By sales channel and region

During the Current Year, revenue was HK$2,383,127,000, representing a 6.64% increase over the Prior
Year. Affected by the weak consumer sentiment in China’s retail sector, the Group’s revenue for the fourth
quarter remained flat year on year, inhibiting growth for the entire year. With its multi-brand strategy in
place, however, the Group rallied the promotional efforts for different brands in its product portfolio to
satisfy the customer demand amid a volatile market environment, thus maintaining steady growth in the
overall sales.

During the Current Year, revenue from the retail sales was HK$2,021,136,000, accounting for 84.81% of
the Group’s total revenue and representing an increase of 7.78% over the Prior Year. Revenue from the
wholesale business increased by 3.81% from HK$266,727,000 to HK$276,885,000, accounting for
11.62% of the total revenue. Revenue from the Group’s direct online sales channels dropped by 10.25%
from HK$84,375,000 over the Prior Year to HK$75,724,000. The export business revenue was
HK$9,382,000, accounting for an insignificant proportion of the Group’s total revenue at 0.39%.

The Mainland China market is the main source of income for the Group. During the Current Year, revenue
from the Mainland China market grew by 6.87% over the Prior Year to HK$2,269,951,000, accounting for
95.25% of the Group’s total revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

By brand and product line

The Group currently operates seven brands, namely EMBRY FORM,
FANDECIE, COMFIT, E-BRA, IADORE, IVU and LIZA CHENG, serving
different customers groups and purchasing powers. EMBRY FORM, our
signature brand, is the main source of income for the Group and its
revenue increased 3.05% to HK$1,124,662,000, accounting for 47.20%
of the total revenue for the Current Year. The revenue of FANDECIE
increased 2.73% over the Prior Year to HK$742,175,000, accounting for
31.14% of the total revenue for the Current Year. COMFIT’s revenue
grew by 2.53% over the Prior Year to HK$191,360,000, accounting for
8.03% of the total revenue for the Current Year. E-BRA’s revenue grew
by 22.91% over the Prior Year to HK$228,771,000, accounting for 9.60%
of the total revenue for the Current Year. LIZA CHENG's revenue for the
Current Year increased 20.71% to HK$30,794,000. New brands
IADORE and IVU, which were in the start-up stage, received positive
market feedbacks, and recorded revenues of HK$21,346,000 and
HK$34,637,000 respectively. The brand’s respective proportions in the
revenue mainly reflected the Group’s alignment of its business focus to
market development.

Lingerie has always been the Group’s core product line. During the

Current Year, sales of lingerie increased by 5.51% over the Prior Year to HK$2,090,151,000, representing
87.71% of the revenue of the Group. Sales of sleepwear and swimwear performed well. Sales of
sleepwear recorded a growth of 13.33% to HK$124,729,000, accounting for 5.23% of the total, while
sales of swimwear recorded a 15.88% increase to HK$148,664,000, accounting for 6.24% of the total.
The above two product lines enrich the Group’s product mix.

Gross profit

During the Current Year, the Group recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$1,960,205,000,
representing an increase of approximately 9.09% over the Prior Year. Gross profit margin was
approximately 82.25%, up from the Prior Year. Although rising labour costs led to increasing pressure on
operating costs, the Group still achieved better economy of scale through business expansion, and
improved production efficiency and brand equity by enhancing production automation. As a result, the
Group’s gross profit margin remained relatively stable.

Other income and gains

Other income dropped by 50.13% to HK$37,976,000 in the Current Year, mainly attrioutable to the
exchange loss recorded by the Group, which was attributable to the depreciation of Renminbi, arising
from the Group’s business operations in Mainland China, and the decrease in subsidy income for the
Current Year.

Operating expenses
During the Current Year, selling and distrioution expenses increased by 7.98% to HK$1,485,498,000
(2013: HK$1,375,742,000), accounting for 62.33% (2013: 61.56%) of the Group’s revenue.

Selling and distribution expenses increased as a percentage of turnover, mainly attributable to the slowing
revenue growth, causing a decline in the Group's overall operating efficiency. In 2015, to alleviate the
pressure of the rising cost ratio, the Group plans to close retail outlets that report low profits for the
purpose of enhancing our operating efficiency. We aim to bring the cost ratio down to a reasonable level in
2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Current Year, increase in contingent rents of the retail outlets, staff costs and expenses incurred
from counter decoration, continued to exert upward pressure on operating costs. Contingent rents of the
retail outlets rose by 8.95% to HK$598,334,000, accounting for 25.11% (2013: 24.58%) of the Group’s
revenue.

Administrative expenses increased by 9.97% to HK$234,932,000, accounting for 9.86% of the Group’s
revenue, compared with 9.56% in the Prior Year.

Net profit

Profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$188,093,000 in the Current Year, representing a
decrease of 5.18% over the Prior Year. Due to such decrease in profit attributable to owners of the
Company, the net profit margin decreased from 8.88% in the Prior Year to 7.89%. Excluding the impact of
foreign exchange differences, the Group’s net profit was HK$195,868,000, representing an increase of
approximately 7.25% as compared against the Prior Year. After deducting the foreign exchange
differences, the net profit margin was 8.22%.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group finances its operations mainly with internally generated cash flows. Financial position of the
Group remained sound and healthy during the Current Year. As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s cash
and cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$180,105,000 (2013: HK$346,327,000). Major
reason for the decrease was because of the increase in capital expenditure incurred during the Current
Year. As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s borrowings amounted to HK$185,000,000 (2013:
HK$121,750,000). As at 31 December 2014, the equity interest attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to HK$1,744,565,000 (2013: HK$1,628,246,000). Accordingly, the gearing ratio of the Group
was approximately 10.60% (2013: 7.48%). During the Current Year, the Group did not pledge any assets
to secure bank loans.

In addition, the Group has been engaged in the infrastructure project in relation to its new production base

in Changzhou, Jiangsu Province since 2013. This project, while satisfying future development needs, will

result in a significant increase in the capital expenditure of the Group. The related cash outlays will
approach its peak from 2014 to mid-2015 as the
project heads towards its completion.

To cope with such arrangement, the Group
entered into three banking facilities with banks in
2014 and early 2015, respectively, with a total
amount of approximately HK$406,582,000.
Amongst these banking facilities are two five-year
term loan agreements of HK$230,000,000 in
aggregate, and the remaining was a standby
facility. As at 24 March 2015, the Group’s
outstanding loans amounted to HK$245,658,000,
representing an increase of 32.79% from that as
at 31 December 2014, and the Group did not
pledge any asset over its bank loans.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital expenditure

During the Current Year, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to HK$279,349,000 (2013:
HK$199,399,000), after offsetting the subsidy received from the People’s Government of Jinan, Shandong
Province, the PRC, for the construction cost of basic infrastructure incurred by the Group (“Shandong
Factory Phase Il Development”), amounted to approximately HK$23,846,000. As at 31 December 2014,
the Group’s capital commitments amounted to HK$94,660,000, which were contracted but not provided
for in the financial statements (2013: HK$266,392,000).

Charge on the Group's assets
As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not pledge any assets.

Capital structure
As at 31 December 2014, the total issued share capital of the Company was HK$4,166,000 (2013:
HK$4,166,000), comprising 416,661,000 (2013: 416,661,000) ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Details of the above are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Significant investment held, material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
and associated companies

During the Current Year, the Group was neither involved in any significant investment, nor any material
acquisitions or disposals of any subsidiaries or associated companies.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group carries out its transactions mainly in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to protect against the volatility associated with foreign currency transactions
and other financial assets and liabilities created in the ordinary course of the business.

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2014, bank guarantees given in lieu of the Group’s property rental deposits and utility
deposits amounted to HK$2,196,000 (2013: Nil).

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other significant contingent liabilities, nor any litigation or
arbitration of material importance.

Prospect

In 2015, global political and economic conditions are uncertain that evaluation of their impact on the
economy became difficult. To cope with the world’s changing economic environment, the Chinese
government presses ahead with its economic restructuring which poses a risk of an economic downturn
and has thus affected the consumer sentiment inevitably in the short term. Nevertheless, the Directors
believe that the national income and living standards will improve on the back of China’s accelerating
urbanisation. These shall continue to drive consumer spending, thereby laying the foundations for the
country’s consumer market.
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As the market leader in the lingerie industry in China, the
Group will adopt a cautiously optimistic approach to
upcoming market challenges. Specifically, it will closely
monitor the market conditions while adopting flexible and
prudent development strategies. The Group will continuously
strengthen its product design and innovation capabilities in
order to meet the diverse consumer needs. Moreover, the
Group will continue to adhere to its multi-brand strategy and
enhance the competitiveness of its core brands. In 2015, the
Group will continue to focus on the development of E-BRA,
while allocating resources to the brand development of
IADORE. By increasing the market penetration in third-tier
cities through wholesale channels, the Group will timely tap
the potential demand that will arise from the urbanisation for
better business growth.

The sales network plays a vital role in the retail sector. Due

to the short-term uncertainties in the market, the Group will
exercise more caution by gauging both the market
environment and the outlet operation efficiency closely. The
Group will strictly control the sales expenses, and appropriately
adjust and optimise the network to enhance overall operating
efficiency. The Group expects that the number of retail outlets in 2015 will approximate that achieved at
the end of 2014. In consideration of the increasing demand for online shopping, the Group will closely
monitor the market development, adjust resources flexibly, and conduct online marketing and promotional
campaigns to accelerate the development of its online shopping business.

The Group will constantly enhance its production efficiency and strengthen production automation to price
its products more competitively, supporting its business expansion and developing its new brands to spur
sales growth. As the overall production efficiency of Jinan plant in Shandong improves and the Changzhou
production facility begins operation in 2015 after relocation, the Group will maintain stable production
capacity.

Despite a challenging business environment in the short
term, the Group believes there remains huge potential in
China’s underwear market. The Group will utilise its flexible
and powerful multi-brand strategy, adopt a sound and
pragmatic approach to its development, continuously
optimise its sales network, and enrich its product portfolio
through innovation. These measures will reinforce the
Group’s leading position in the retail market, foster long-
term and steady business growth and generate satisfactory
returns to its shareholders.
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Awards in 2014
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e EMBRY FORM received the Hong Kong Top Brand (2007-2014) award from the Hong Kong Brand
Development Council and The Chinese Manufacturers’” Association of Hong Kong

¢ EMBRY FORM and FANDECIE were both awarded the Quality Tourism Services Scheme Certification Mark by
the Hong Kong Tourism Board

e EMBRY FORM received the Annual Achievement Award and Annual Public Service Award of China’s
Underwear Industry (2013-2014) in the 2014 China International Intimate Apparel Culture Week

¢ FANDECIE was granted the Annual Top Ten Brands Award of China’s Underwear Industry (2013-2014) in the
2014 China International Intimate Apparel Culture Week

¢ [E-BRA received the Annual Fashion Brands Award of China’s Underwear Industry (2013-2014) in the 2014
China International Intimate Apparel Culture Week

¢ Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was granted the awards of 2014 National Excellent Enterprise with Foreign
Investment — Quality Progress and Harmonious Labour Relationship Promotion by the China Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Shenzhen Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment

¢ Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was awarded the certificate of National Excellent Enterprise with Credible
Quality by the China Association for Quality Inspection

¢ Embry (Shanghai) Company Limited was accredited as a Three-Star Credibility Enterprise by the Shanghai
Campaign Committee for Credibility Enterprise and the Shanghai Association of Underwear Industry

e Embry (H.K.) Limited was accredited by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service as a Caring Enterprise
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As a leading lingerie brand and retail enterprise in China, Embry has been committed to corporate social responsibility for
more than 30 years. Embry always believes in the integrated values of maintaining a balance among social, economic and
environmental developments, and is engaged in charitable causes to show its care and support for public welfare. In 2014,
the Group continued to uphold this principle when fulfilling its social responsibility by working for the causes of women’s
affairs, the common good and environmental protection under the theme “Love and Care”.

Embry has jointly organized the “Blue Ribbon Charity Campaign” with China Women’s Development Foundation for eight
consecutive years. In 2014, the Group made a donation of over RMB5 million in kind to the ethnic minorities and
underprivileged women in Guangxi, Jiangxi, Guizhou, Shandong and Shanghai. The Group also conducted a large-scale
charitable campaign under the theme of “Endless Affection and Beauty” ([ Z/0MF7k o Z£& |37 |) at the end of the year by
teaming up with the staff of China Women’s Development Foundation and health specialists to visit the Baise City in
Guangxi and Ji’an City in Jiangxi. The team held health seminars for women of the ethnic minorities and visited the
underprivileged families with the aim of gaining thorough understanding of their living conditions, promoting knowledge
about women’s health and helping the women of the ethnic minorities in remote areas in fostering a sense of self-
confidence. The charitable campaign which is organized by the Group and carried out in cooperation with China Women'’s
Development Foundation, has by far been conducted in 17 provinces, cities and autonomous regions in the country. The
Group has donated a total sum of approximately RMB30.78 million in kind over the years, providing support and building a
dream of beauty and health for the underprivileged women in regions of such ethnic minorities as the Zhuang, Yao,
Manchu, Miao, Dong, Korean, Mongolian, Tibetan and Dai.
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The “Community Chest Dress Casual Day” is a broad-scale annual fund-raising event of The Community Chest of Hong
Kong, which raises fund to give assistance to the underprivileged locals and to help members of needy families to establish
close relationship and mutual love, thus maintaining and strengthening family units in the society. In addition to joining this
meaningful charitable fund-raising event, Embry also participated in the “Community Chest Skip Lunch Day” to raise money
for the street sleepers, residents in cage homes and cubicles, and to help people from different sectors of the society who are
in need.

In addition, the Group participated in the “Moon Cake Charity Sale” which was organized by Plan International Hong Kong.
Not only did Embry extend love and care to children and families in need, but also shared the charity moon cakes with its
employees. The Company and employees united in promoting the message of “Love and Care”.

During the year, Embry continued to devote resources and professional knowledge to the community. It was awarded the
“Caring Company Logo” by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service (HKCSS) for two consecutive years in recognition of its
contribution to the common good. The Group will continue to participate in the “Caring Company” program and undertake
the mission of “Caring for the Community, Caring for the Employees, Caring for the Environment” by jointly promoting
corporate social responsibility and building an inclusive community with HKCSS.

As a socially responsible enterprise, Embry has been actively developing green policies and allocating resources to projects
that prevent environmental pollution and restore the environment for years in order to strike a balance between sustainable
corporate development and environmental protection. Back in 2002, Embry pioneered a green lingerie production chain by
utilizing environmental friendly production techniques in producing green and ecological underwear of the highest
standards. Since 2006, the Group’s eco-industrial park in Shandong has been using environmental friendly construction
facilities such as renewable energy technology of geothermal heat pumps, energy-saving insulation walls and natural lighting
in the production areas in a green project named “Beauty Project” ([ 32 T2 ) to build a low-carbon green industrial zone
for sustainable development. These facilities enable the Group to save energy and decrease the emission of carbon dioxide
and sulfur dioxide, thus further reducing the impact of production processes on the environment.

Embry carries out a set of strict control measures for its production to ensure its products and production processes comply
with the highest national environmental standards. In 2002, Embry pioneered the green products which had ecological
benefits, and thus became the first lingerie enterprise in the industry to have been awarded the “Ten-Ring Certification”
([F3R1Z5K]). Ecological products are defined as those whose raw materials, especially textiles, have passed ecological
certification. The production process of such products is also strictly monitored so that the use of harmful dyes, pesticide
and formaldehyde is banned, application of extractable heavy metals is restricted, and the pH value is balanced. Integrating
the use of ecologically certified textiles in its products with its own patented technologies, Embry brings intimate comfort
and health protection for women.
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Madam Ngok Ming Chu, aged 78, is the Chairman of the Group and an Executive Director of the Company. She is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Madam Ngok is in charge of the Group’s corporate strategy and business
planning. She joined the Group in 1980 and has over 34 years of experience in the lingerie industry. Madam Ngok
graduated from and is currently an Honorary Professor of Beijing Agricultural Engineering University (now known as China
Agricultural University). She is also a shareholder and director of Harmonious World Limited (a substantial shareholder of
the Company), the spouse of Mr. Cheng Man Tai (a substantial shareholder of the Company) and the mother of Ms. Cheng
Pik Ho Liza (an Executive Director of the Company).

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, aged 52, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group, an Executive Director and a member of both
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Ms. Cheng is responsible for the day-to-day management of the businesses of the Group. Ms. Cheng joined
the Group in 1993 and has over 22 years of experience in the lingerie industry. She obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from the University of Southern California and a Master of Business Administration (Executive) degree from
the City University of Hong Kong. Ms. Cheng was awarded the prize for Young Industrialist in Hong Kong in 1999 and was
appointed as Vice Chairman of Shanghai Garment Trade Association in 2008. She obtained the World Outstanding Chinese
Award and Honorary Doctorate of Business Administration from International American University in March 2009, and was
awarded Fellowship and admitted as Visiting Professor by Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration and
Lincoln University respectively in September 2009. Furthermore, Ms. Cheng was elected as the first President of Shenzhen
Underwear Association in August 2012. She is currently a member of the Jinan Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference in Shandong, a member of the Yangpu Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference in Shanghai, a member of the China Trade Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development Council, the
Vice Chairman of China Knitting Industrial Association and the Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong General Chamber of
Textiles Limited. Ms. Cheng is also a director of Harmonious World Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company), and
the daughter of Mr. Cheng Man Tai (a substantial shareholder of the Company) and Madam Ngok Ming Chu (the Chairman
of the Group).

Ms. Lu Qun, aged 61, is an Executive Director of the Company and currently the Assistant General Manager (Strategic
Management) of Embry (China) Garments Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. She is also a director and the
General Manager of Embry (Shandong) Garments Limited, another wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. She is
responsible for the functions of strategic management and project management in Mainland China (the “PRC”). Ms. Lu
joined the Group in April 2003 and has over 35 years of experience in management and administration. She obtained a
Master’s degree in Business Administration from Beihang University (previously known as Beijing University of Aeronautics
and Astronautics), the PRC, in 2001. She has also obtained an undergraduate diploma in international trade from the
University of International Business and Economics, the PRC, in 1992. Ms. Lu completed a senior managers’ human
resources management training course held by Tsinghua University, the PRC, in 2006. She has obtained the International
Project Management Professional Certification since 2002. She is currently a member of the 15th Shanghai Municipal
People’s Congress.

Mr. Lau Siu Ki, alias, Kevin Lau, aged 56, is an Independent Non-Executive Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of both the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Lau is currently
running his own management consultancy firm, Hin Yan Consultants Limited. Mr. Lau has previously worked at an
international accounting firm for over 15 years. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic in 1981. Mr. Lau is a
member of both the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA”) and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He was a member of the worldwide Council of ACCA from May 2002 to September 2011. Mr. Lau is
currently the company secretary of Yeebo (International Holdings) Limited, an independent supervisor of Beijing Capital
International Airport Co., Ltd., and an independent non-executive director of Binhai Investment Company Limited, COL
Capital Limited, Comba Telecom Systems Holdings Limited, FIH Mobile Limited, Samson Holding Ltd., TCL Communication
Technology Holdings Limited and UKF (Holdings) Limited, the shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Lau joined the Company in November 2006.
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Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, aged 49, is an Independent Non-Executive Director, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee is a consultant of Howse
Williams Bowers. He received his LL.B (Honours) degree and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong
Kong in 1988 and 1989 respectively. He was then admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1991 and in England and Wales
in 1997. Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive director of NetDragon Websoft Inc., Asia Cassava Resources
Holdings Limited, Futong Technology Development Holdings Limited, Walker Group Holdings Limited, Newton Resources
Ltd, Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings Company Limited, China BlueChemical Ltd. and Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd., the
shares of these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. He had been an independent non-executive director of New
Universe International Group Limited, Yuexiu REIT Asset Management Limited (the manager of Yuexiu Real Estate
Investment Trust) and Far East Holdings International Limited, the shares or trust units of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange, until his resignation on 18 July 2012, 7 October 2014 and 12 November 2014 respectively. Mr. Lee joined the
Company in November 2006.

Prof. Lee T. S., alias, Lee Tien-sheng, aged 66, is an Independent Non-Executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of both the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Prof. Lee is currently
the Head and Professor of the Department of Supply Chain Management of Hang Seng Management College. He was the
Dean of the Faculty of Business Administration of The Chinese University of Hong Kong from 2002 to 2008 and Vice-
President (Academic & Research) of Hang Seng Management College from 2009 to 2014. Prof. Lee obtained his PhD in
Business Administration and Master’s degree in Business Administration from the University of Missouri-Columbia, the US in
1982 and 1978 respectively. He also holds a Master’s degree in Management Science and a Bachelor’s degree in Electronic
Engineering from the National Chiao Tung University of Taiwan. Prof. Lee’s research and teaching interests include supply
chain management, quality management and business process reengineering. He has published his research in many
academic journals. Prof. Lee joined the Company in November 2006.

Ms. Fung Kam Lai Katie, aged 48, is the Group’s Chief Financial Officer. Ms. Fung is responsible for the supervision and
management of the Group’s overall financial matters and investor relations. She joined the Group in March 2007 as the
Internal Audit Director and was appointed to the present position in July 2010. Ms. Fung obtained a Master’s degree in
Business Administration (Executive) from the City University of Hong Kong. She is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Fung has over 25 years of
experience in auditing, financial accounting, corporate investment and financing, as well as management.

Mr. Ma Rui, aged 44, is the Assistant General Manager (Marketing) of Embry (China) Garments Ltd. He is responsible for the
functions of sales planning and marketing management in the PRC. Mr. Ma graduated from Changsha University with a
diploma in applied computer science in 1992, and is at present studying a master of business administration programme
offered by the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics. Mr. Ma has been engaged in various posts in sales and
marketing since joining the Group in October 1998. He possesses over 21 years of practical experience in sales and
marketing management.
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The Board and the management of the Company are committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance practices
and procedures. The Company believes that good corporate governance provides a framework that is essential for effective
management, a healthy corporate culture, sustainable business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”)
as its own code of corporate governance practices.

The Company complied with the code provisions under the CG Code so far as they are applicable and a majority of the
recommended best practices under the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2014 (the “Review Period”).

(3 Executive Directors
and 3 Independent
Non-Executive Directors)

(1 Executive Director (1 Executive Director

3 Ind dent
and 3 Independent Non (Exer;ufi]?/inDiechtors) and 3 Independent
Non-Executive Directors) Non-Executive Directors)

(Assistant Director — Internal Audit)

Board Composition
The Directors place great emphasis on the fiduciary nature of the Board’s responsibilities and strive to be accountable to the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

A board diversity policy has been formulated by the Board setting out the approach to maintaining a Board with a diversity
of directors. The Company recognises the benefits of diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting its
sustainable development. All Board appointments will continue to be based on meritocracy with due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.



EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

25

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors, namely Madam Ngok Ming Chu (Chairman), Ms. Cheng Pik Ho
Liza (Chief Executive Officer) and Ms. Lu Qun; and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Siu Ki, Mr.
Lee Kwan Hung and Prof. Lee T. S. The number of Independent Non-Executive Directors represents more than one third of
the Board. The biographical details of and relationships among the members of the Board are disclosed under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 22 to 23 of this annual report.

The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business development of the Group and for effective leadership as all the Executive Directors
possess extensive experience in management and the design, production and marketing of lingerie products while the three
Independent Non-Executive Directors possess professional knowledge and broad experience in finance, law and
management respectively. The Directors are of the opinion that the present structure of the Board can ensure the
independence and objectivity of the Board and provide a system of checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the Company.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Article 108 (A) of the articles of association of the Company provides that one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if
their number is not three or multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years at the Company’s
annual general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election. Under Article 105, the office of a Director of the Company is
liable to be vacated in certain circumstances and the Company may remove any Director of the Company by an ordinary
resolution at a general meeting as prescribed in Article 114.

The appointment of new Directors and nomination of Directors for re-election at annual general meetings are first
considered by the Nomination Committee. The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to the
Board for decision. New Directors appointed by the Board are subject to re-election by shareholders at the next following
annual general meeting pursuant to the articles of association of the Company. In considering the appointment of new
Directors, the Nomination Committee will assess the candidate according to the criteria set out in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the
Listing Rules. In the case of a candidate for an Independent Non-Executive Director, he/she should also meet the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Executive Directors

The Executive Directors, Madam Ngok Ming Chu and Ms. Lu Qun, have each entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed term of two years with effect from 25 March 2014 and 2 February 2015 respectively, whereas Ms.
Cheng Pik Ho Liza has entered into a service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of three years with effect from 1
December 2012. Each Executive Director is entitled to a discretionary management bonus provided that the aggregate
amount of the bonuses payable to all the Executive Directors for any financial year of the Company shall not exceed 8% of
the audited consolidated net profit of the Group (after taxation and non-controlling interests and payment of such bonuses)
for that financial year of the Company. An Executive Director shall not vote on any resolution of the Directors regarding the
amount of the management bonus payable to her.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors was appointed for a term of two years commencing from 25 November
2014 with a formal letter of appointment setting out the key terms and conditions of his appointment.

Save for the directors’ fees and the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme (as defined on page 41 of this
annual report) to each of them, none of the Independent Non-Executive Directors is expected to receive any other
remuneration for holding his office as an Independent Non-Executive Director.

The Company annually assesses the independence of each Independent Non-Executive Director during his term of
appointment. In January and February 2015, the Company received from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on such confirmations, the
Company considers that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

Proceedings of Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings

The Board considers that all meetings should be legally and properly convened. The Chairman of the Board takes the lead to
ensure that Board meetings and Board committee meetings are convened in accordance with the requirements set out in the
articles of association of the Company, the terms of reference of the respective Board committees and the Listing Rules.

In convening Board meetings, the Chairman is responsible for drawing up and approving the agenda for each meeting after
consultation with all the Directors and the Company Secretary. Prior notice of each regular Board meeting is given to all the
Directors at least 14 days in advance and the Directors are invited to include matters for discussion in the agenda. Agenda
and accompanying Board papers are sent to all the Directors at least 3 days (or such other period as agreed) prior to
meetings.

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In addition, special Board meetings are held when necessary. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or through other electronic means of communication, of all the
Directors.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to provide sufficient notice to give all the Directors an
opportunity to attend. For special Board meetings, reasonable notice is given.

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The minutes of Board meetings record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board, including all concerns raised
by the Directors and dissenting views expressed. The minutes of all Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
available for inspection by any Director, auditors or any relevant eligible parties who can have access to such minutes.
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Directors’ Attendance Records
The record of attendance of individual Directors at the Board meetings, Board committee meetings and annual general
meeting held in 2014 is set out in the following table:

Number of Meetings Attended/Held

Annual

Audit  Nomination Remuneration General
Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Executive Directors
Cheng Man Tai (Former Chairman)* 2/2 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Ngok Ming Chu (Chairman)* 4/5 N/A N/A N/A 11
Cheng Pik Ho Liza (Chief Executive Officer) 5/5 N/A 2/2 3/3 1/1
Lu Qun** N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Lau Siu Ki 5/5 3/3 2/2 3/3 11
Lee Kwan Hung 5/5 3/3 2/2 3/3 11
LeeT.S. 5/5 3/3 2/2 3/3 11
Average Attendance Rate 96.3% 100% 100% 100% 100%
* Mr. Cheng Man Tai resigned as an Executive Director and the Chairman of the Company and Madam Ngok Ming Chu was

appointed as the Chairman of the Company on 24 March 2014.
Prior to Mr. Cheng's resignation, there were a total of two Board meetings held during the Review Period.

o Ms. Lu Qun has been appointed as an Executive Director of the Company after the Review Period.

In addition, the Chairman met once with the Independent Non-Executive Directors without the presence of the Executive

Directors during the Review Period.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has subscribed an insurance policy since December 2006 with an aim to indemnify its Directors and senior
executives from any losses, claims, damages, liabilities and expenses arising from, including but not limited to, any
proceedings brought against them during the performance of their duties pursuant to their respective service agreements
entered into with the Company.

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) (with
certain modifications but on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code (“Securities Dealing Code”) to regulate the securities dealings by all the
Directors and relevant employees of the Group.

The Company made specific enquiry of all the Directors and members of the senior management who confirmed that they
complied with the Securities Dealing Code during the Review Period.
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Continuous Professional Development
Pursuant to the CG Code, all directors should participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.

During the Review Period, all Directors received regular briefings and updates on the Group’s business, operations, internal
controls and corporate governance matters. Relevant reading materials were provided to the Directors. They also attended
courses and seminars organised by external professional bodies on topics relevant to the duties and responsibilities of a
director during the Review Period. All Directors have provided the Company with their respective training records pursuant
to the CG Code.

Procedure for Seeking Independent Professional Advice by Directors

There is a written procedure agreed by the Board to enable Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek and be provided
with independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense in order to assist them to
discharge their duties to the Company.

Distinctive Roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

To avoid concentration of power in any one individual, a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer is crucial to the effective running of the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group’s
businesses. The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are held by two different
Executive Directors, namely Madam Ngok Ming Chu and Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza respectively. Their roles and duties are
segregated, with a clear division of responsibilities. Madam Ngok Ming Chu, the Chairman, is to provide leadership for the
Board and ensure that the Board works effectively while Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, the Chief Executive Officer, is answerable
to the Board for the operations of the Group. Madam Ngok is the mother of Ms. Cheng.

Distinctive Roles of the Board and the Management
While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding and monitoring the operations of the Group, in discharging
its duties, certain responsibilities are delegated to:

J the standing Board committees of the Company namely: the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Each committee’s constitution, powers and duties are clearly defined by its terms of
reference, and the committees are accountable to the Board. Ad hoc Board committees may also be established as
required from time to time by the Board;

J the Chief Executive Officer, being delegated with the day-to-day management of the businesses of the Group, is
accountable to the Board; and

J the senior management team of the Group, being delegated with the responsibilities to deal with daily operational
functions, is answerable to the Executive Directors.

The Board believes that effective delegation of authority can ensure that the Board is provided with sufficient and timely
information of the Group’s businesses which is, in particular, relevant to the Group’s performance, financial position and
operating results, in order that the Board is able to make an informed assessment of matters put before the Board for
approval. During the Review Period, each Executive Director had frequent meetings with operational managers in order to
maintain an effective feedback system and enable the Company to react to changes or problems quickly and effectively.



EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

29

The functions reserved to the Board are formalized in writing and include:

J any matters relating to the formulation of the Company’s strategy and direction;
J any matters relating to financial controls, compliance and risk management;
J any changes in corporate structure such as the changes relating to the Company’s capital structure, including share

buy-back or issue of new securities;

J major appointments such as appointments to the Board, after taking into account the recommendations of the
Nomination Committee; the appointment of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer; recommendations to the
shareholders on the appointment or removal of external auditors after taking into consideration the recommendations
of the Audit Committee; and the appointment or removal of the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary;

. any matters determined by the Board to be material, including dividend policy, significant changes in accounting
policies, material contracts, major financing arrangements and major investments; and

J the corporate governance functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

With respect to the corporate governance functions, the Board has reviewed and monitored the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, the training and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Board regularly reviews its arrangement for delegation of authority to ensure that such delegation is appropriate in view
of the Company’s prevailing circumstances and that appropriate reporting systems are in place.

A total of three Board committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, have been formed, each of which is delegated with specific roles and responsibilities by the Board. All the
Board committees follow the same principles and procedures as those of the Board. The Board receives the minutes of each
committee meeting on a regular basis, including their decisions and recommendations.

Audit Committee
At present, the Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely:

Mr. Lau Siu Ki (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung
Prof. Lee T. S.

Members of the Audit Committee are appointed by the Board among the Independent Non-Executive Directors and the
committee consists of not less than three members. The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and together form a suitable mix of expertise in the legal and accounting fields and that the
composition and members of the Audit Committee comply with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
Board, after consultation with the chairman of the Audit Committee, provides sufficient resources to the Audit Committee to
enable it to discharge its duties.
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The Audit Committee has the responsibilities and powers set forth in its terms of reference. To maintain its independence,
the Audit Committee is required to have at least one meeting with the external auditors without the presence of Executive
Directors within a financial year. The function of the committee is to provide assistance to the Board in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities to shareholders, potential shareholders, the investment community and other stakeholders relating to:

o the integrity of accounts and financial reporting process of the Company;
J the assessment of the external auditors’ qualifications and independence; and
J the performance of the Company’s internal audit function and the performance of the external auditors.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
During the Review Period, the Audit Committee held three meetings including one meeting with the external auditors
without the presence of the Executive Directors and the management. The record of attendance of individual Directors at
the committee meetings is set out on page 27 of this annual report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee during the Review Period:

(i) review of the annual report and results announcement of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013, with
a recommendation to the Board for approval;

(i) review of the external auditors’ independence and their report, with a recommendation to the Board for the re-
appointment of the external auditors by the shareholders of the Company at its 2014 annual general meeting;

(iii) review of continuing connected transactions;

(iv)  review of the interim report and results announcement of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2014, with
a recommendation to the Board for approval;

v) review of quarterly financial reports of the Company prepared by the Finance and Accounts Department;
(vi) consideration of audit and non-audit services provided by the external auditors;

(vii)  review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries;

(viii)  review of periodic reports prepared by the Internal Audit Department;

(ix)  review of the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget; and

(x) review of the audit fees payable to the external auditors for the year ended 31 December 2014, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval.
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Auditors’ Remuneration
The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration paid/payable to Messrs. Ernst & Young, the external auditors of the
Company, for the following services provided during the Review Period:

Remuneration Paid/

Services Rendered Payable
Audit services HK$2,940,000
Non-audit services HK$1,518,000
Total: HK$4,458,000

The Audit Committee has expressed its views to the Board that the level of fees paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditors is reasonable. There has been no major disagreement between the auditors and the management of the Company
during the Review Period.

Nomination Committee
At present, the Nomination Committee has four members comprising one Executive Director and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely:

Prof. Lee T. S. (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza
Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung

The main functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, to identify
individuals who are suitably qualified to become Directors, and to assess the independence of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors. After considering the independence and qualifications of nominees, the Nomination Committee makes
recommendations to the Board so as to ensure that all nominations are fair and transparent. The Nomination Committee is
also responsible for reviewing the succession planning of Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer. The Board, after consultation with the chairman of the Nomination Committee, provides sufficient resources to the

Nomination Committee to enable it to discharge its duties.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings in 2014. The record of attendance of individual Directors at the committee
meeting is set out on page 27 of this annual report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee during the Review Period:
(i) assessment of the independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors;

(i) recommendation to the Board on the re-election of Directors;

(iii)  recommendation to the Board on the appointment of Chairman of the Company; and

(iv)  review of the existing structure, size and composition of the Board.

As a good corporate governance practice, Nomination Committee member (being also the Independent Non-Executive
Director) abstained from assessing his own independence.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website.
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Remuneration Committee
At present, the Remuneration Committee has four members comprising one Executive Director and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely:

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza

Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Prof. Lee T. S.

The main functions of the Remuneration Committee are to assist the Board in establishing a formal and transparent
procedure for setting policy on Directors” and senior management’s remuneration and to make recommendation to the
Board on the packages (which include benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments) of individual Executive
Directors and senior management (i.e. the model described in code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code was adopted) as
well as on the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors. The Board, after consultation with the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, provides sufficient resources to the Remuneration Committee to enable it to discharge its duties.

In recommending the remuneration of the Directors, the Remuneration Committee makes reference to companies of
comparable business or scale, and the nature and volume of work in order to compensate the Directors reasonably for their
time and efforts spent. The Remuneration Committee regularly reviews and makes recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings in 2014. The record of attendance of individual Directors at the
committee meetings is set out on page 27 of this annual report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the Review Period:

(i) review of the salary increment for 2014 of Executive Directors and staff in Mainland China and Hong Kong, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

(i) consideration of the payment of bonuses to the senior management staff in Mainland China and Hong Kong, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

(iii) ~ recommendation to the Board on the vesting of share options under the Share Option Scheme to selected employees;
(iv)  consideration of the payment of discretionary bonuses to Executive Directors and the senior management in respect
of the final results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the interim results of the Company for

the six months ended 30 June 2014, with a recommendation to the Board for approval;

v) review of the new service agreement between the Company and the Chairman of the Company, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

(vi)  review of the consultancy agreement between the Company and the former Chairman of the Company, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval; and

(vii)  review of the letters of re-appointment of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2014 is as follows:

Number of employees

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1
Total: 3

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of the financial statements for each financial period, which
shall give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company. During the Review Period, the Board was not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue in business. Accordingly, the Board has prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going concern
basis.

All the Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2014.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of
the Group is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 89 to 90 of this annual report.

The Company announces its interim and annual results as soon as reasonably practicable after the end of the relevant
financial period and the financial year respectively pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, disclosing all such
information as would enable the Company’s shareholders to assess the performance, financial position and prospects of the
Company.

The Board is responsible for the internal controls of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. The Board acknowledges
that the objectives of internal control are to safeguard the Company’s assets against unauthorised use or disposition and to
ensure that the Company’s accounting records are properly maintained and all the financial information is accurate and
reliable.

The Internal Audit Department of the Group conducts reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. It
carries out the financial, operational, project management and information security control reviews according to the yearly
plan reviewed and endorsed by the Audit Committee. In addition to the agreed schedule of work, the department conducts
other reviews and work as and when required. The findings and recommendations have been reviewed by the members of
the Audit Committee and the Board who are of the view that the internal control system of the Group has been effective
without the occurrence of any significant failure.
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The Internal Audit Department of the Group continued to provide independent assurance to the Board and management on
the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls for the Group during the Review Period. The Assistant Director of
Internal Audit reports functionally to the Audit Committee and administratively to the Chief Executive Officer.

The Board undertakes to periodically review the internal control and risk management systems of the Group to ensure their
effectiveness and efficiency.

The Board reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget during the Review Period and considered that the
Group had adequate staff resources with the competence, qualifications and experience necessary for the effective
performance of its accounting and financial reporting function.

Ms. So Ka Man of Tricor Services Limited, external service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its Company
Secretary. The primary contact person at the Company, whom Ms. So can contact, is Ms. Katie Fung, the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company.

During the Review Period, Ms. So has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update her skills and
knowledge.

Since 2006, the Company has engaged a professional public relations consultancy company to organise various investor
relations programs (including regular briefing meetings with the media and analysts) aiming at increasing the transparency of
the Company, enhancing communication with shareholders and investors, increasing their understanding of and confidence
in the Group's businesses and promoting market recognition of and support to the Company.

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining on-going communications with its shareholders and encourages
them to attend shareholders’ meetings to stay informed of the Group’s businesses and convey any concerns they may have
to the Directors and senior management.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company by Shareholders

In accordance with Article 64 of the articles of association of the Company, an extraordinary general meeting can be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in
writing to the Directors or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Directors for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
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Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board
Enquiries by shareholders to be put to the Board can be sent in writing to the Company’s Company Secretarial Department
at the principal place of business in Hong Kong.

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and registration, change of name or address, loss of share
certificates or dividend warrants, the Company’s registered shareholders can contact the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited. For other enquires or requests, the Company’s investors can contact iPR
Ogilvy Limited, the Company’s investor relations consultancy company. Detailed contact information is available on the
Company’s website at www.embrygroup.com.

Procedures for Making Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

If a shareholder of the Company wishes to nominate a person to stand for election as a Director, the following documents
must be validly sent to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, namely (i) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution at the general
meeting; and (ii) a notice executed by the nominated candidate of the candidate’s willingness to be appointed. The period
for lodgment of the notices of (i) and (ii) above will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting.

To put forward proposals other than the above at a general meeting, shareholders of the Company should submit a written
notice of those proposals with their detailed contact information to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong. The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for consideration of the proposal raised by
the shareholders concerned at general meetings varies according to the nature of the proposal.

During the Review Period, the Company has not made any changes to its articles of association. An up-to-date version of the
articles of association of the Company is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Shareholders
may refer to the articles of association for further details of the rights of shareholders.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended

31 December 2014.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 23 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities

during the year.

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 91 to 176.

An interim dividend of HK4 cents per ordinary share was paid on 3 October 2014. The directors recommend the payment of
a final dividend of HK8 cents per ordinary share and a special dividend of HK2 cents per ordinary share in respect of the
year, to shareholders on the register of members on 27 May 2015. Details are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements is set out below.

Results
Year ended 31 December
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
REVENUE 2,383,127 2,234,763 1,995,356 1,694,987 1,349,846
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 268,557 273,663 260,614 231,268 185,684
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (80,464) (75,294) (77,052) (70,985) (58,814)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 188,093 198,369 183,562 160,283 126,870
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 188,093 198,369 183,562 160,283 126,870
Assets and Liabilities
As at 31 December
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$7000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TOTAL ASSETS 2,409,264 2,151,480 1,901,395 1,757,214 1,539,245
TOTAL LIABILITIES (664,699) (523,234) (464,159) (483,988) (427,242)
1,744,565 1,628,246 1,437,236 1,273,226 1,112,003

The above summary does not form a part of the audited financial statements.
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Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and the investment properties of the Group during the year are
set out in notes 17 and 18 to the financial statements, respectively.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options during the year are set out in notes 30 and 31 to the
financial statements, respectively.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group during the year are set out in note 32(b) to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

At 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$791,883,000, of
which HK$41,666,000 has been proposed as final and special dividends for the year after the reporting period. The amount
of HK$791,883,000 includes the Company’s share premium account and contributed surplus of HK$750,892,000 in
aggregate at 31 December 2014, which may be distributed provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling HK$6,331,000.

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers and purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales and purchases for the year, respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of
the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.
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The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Man Tai*

Madam Ngok Ming Chu (Chairman)*

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lu Qun**

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung

Prof. Lee T. S.

* Mr. Cheng Man Tai resigned as Chairman and executive director and Madam Ngok Ming Chu was appointed as Chairman on 24

March 2014.

o Ms. Lu Qun was subsequently appointed as executive director on 2 February 2015.

In accordance with article 108 of the Company’s articles of association, Madam Ngok Ming Chu and Mr. Lau Siu Ki will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(//AGM”).

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s articles of association, Ms. Lu Qun will retire at the AGM and, being
eligible, will offer herself for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr. Lau Siu Ki, Mr. Lee Kwan Hung and
Prof. Lee T. S. pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), and as at the date of this report, still considers them to be independent.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior management of the Group are set out on pages 22 to 23
of the annual report.
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Madam Ngok Ming Chu and Ms. Lu Qun, have each entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of two
years commencing on 25 March 2014 and 2 February 2015, respectively. Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 December 2012.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has been appointed for a term of two years commencing on 25 November
2014.

Under the service agreement, after each complete year of service, the remuneration payable to each of the executive
directors may, subject to the discretion of the Company’s board of directors, be increased by not more than 10% and the
executive directors are entitled to a discretionary management bonus provided that the total amount of bonuses payable to
all the executive directors for that year shall not exceed 8% of the audited consolidated profit after tax of the Group.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Group’s emolument policy is formulated based on the performance of individual employees and is reviewed regularly.
Subject to the Group’s profitability, the Group may also provide discretionary bonuses to its employees as an incentive for
their contribution to the Group. The primary goal of the emolument policy with regard to the remuneration packages of the
Group’s executive directors is to enable the Group to retain and motivate executive directors by linking their compensation
with performance as measured against corporate objectives achieved.

The principal elements of the Group’s remuneration packages include basic salaries, discretionary bonuses and housing
benefits.

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders” approval at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

Save for transactions as disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements, no director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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At 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the directors and chief executive in the share capital and
underlying shares of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Name of director

Madam Ngok Ming Chu

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza

Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung

Prof. Lee T. S.

Capacity and

nature of interest

Interest of controlled

corporations
Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

Interest of spouse

Interest of spouse

Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

Shares/equity
derivatives

Ordinary shares
(Note 1)

Ordinary shares

Share options
(Note 2)

Ordinary shares
(Note 3)

Shares options
(Notes 2 & 3)

Ordinary shares

Share options
(Note 2)

Ordinary shares

Share options
(Note 2)

Ordinary shares

Share options
(Note 2)

Ordinary shares

Share options
(Note 2)

Number of
shares/equity
derivatives held

276,679,557

2,302,000
60,000

4,631,000

35,000

20,736,848
1,460,000

768,000
100,000

532,000
100,000

604,000
100,000

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
capital

66.40

0.55
0.01

1.1

0.01

4.98
0.35

0.18
0.02

0.13
0.02

0.14
0.02
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Notes:

1. These shares are held as to 275,408,367 shares by Harmonious World Limited (“Harmonious World”) and as to 1,271,190 shares
by Fairmout Investments Limited (“Fairmout Investments”). Harmonious World is owned as to 40.91% by Madam Ngok Ming Chu
and as to 59.09% by Mr. Cheng Man Tai. Fairmout Investments is owned as to 50% by Madam Ngok Ming Chu and as to 50% by
Mr. Cheng Man Tai. Mr. Cheng Man Tai is the spouse of Madam Ngok Ming Chu.

2. These represent the number of shares which will be allotted and issued to the respective directors upon the exercise of the share
options granted to each of them under the share option scheme adopted on 18 December 2006 (the “Share Option Scheme”).
Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.

3. Madam Ngok Ming Chu is deemed to be interested in the shares and share options personally held by her spouse, Mr. Cheng Man

Tai, pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

Percentage of
the associated

Name of Relationship Shares/ Capacity and corporation’s
associated with the equity Number nature of issued share
Name of director corporation Company derivatives of shares interest capital
Madam Ngok Ming Chu Harmonious Ultimate  Ordinary shares ~ 40.09 shares of Beneficial 40.91
World holding US$1 each owner
company

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the directors and chief executive of the Company had registered
an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” above and in the section “Share Option Scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 18 December 2006. Details of the Share Option Scheme and the share
option movements during the year are disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2014, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company (other than the
interests of the directors of the Company as disclosed above) were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by

the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Name

Mr. Cheng Man Tai

Harmonious World

FIL Limited

Capacity and

nature of interest

Interest of controlled

corporations
Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

Interest of spouse

Interest of spouse

Beneficial owner

Investment manager

Shares/equity
derivatives

Ordinary shares
(Note 1)

Ordinary shares

Share options
(Note 2)

Ordinary Shares
(Note 3)

Share options
(Notes 2 & 3)

Ordinary shares
(Note 4)

Ordinary shares

Number of
shares/equity
derivatives held

276,679,557

4,631,000

35,000

2,302,000

60,000

275,408,367

37,520,000

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
capital

66.40

0.01

0.55

0.01

66.10

9.00
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Notes:

These shares are held as to 275,408,367 shares by Harmonious World and as to 1,271,190 shares by Fairmout Investments. The
relationships among Mr. Cheng Man Tai, Madam Ngok Ming Chu, Harmonious World and Fairmout Investments are disclosed
under the section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” above.

These represent the number of shares which will be allotted and issued to Mr. Cheng Man Tai and his spouse upon the exercise of
the share options granted to each of them under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in
note 31 to the financial statements.

Mr. Cheng Man Tai is deemed to be interested in the shares and share options personally held by his spouse, Madam Ngok Ming
Chu, pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

The relationship between Harmonious World, Mr. Cheng Man Tai and Madam Ngok Ming Chu is disclosed under the section
“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, no person, other than the directors of the Company, whose interests are
set out in the section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” above,
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25%
of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected transactions, details of which are disclosed in
compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(1)

Purchase of furniture and decoration services

The Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group had entered into a services agreement with related companies
controlled by a son of a substantial shareholder who was an executive director of the Company and resigned from his
position within the last 12 months, pursuant to which the Company and these subsidiaries agreed to purchase furniture
and services of decoration for their counters and shops as well as different types of moulds from the related companies.
The services agreement expired on 31 December 2011 and the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group
therefore entered into a new services agreement (the “2012 Agreement”) with the related companies on 21 December
2011. Under the 2012 Agreement, the Group agreed to purchase furniture and services of decoration for their counters
and shops as well as different types of moulds from the related companies for a period of three years starting from 1
January 2012. The continuing connected transactions contemplated under the 2012 Agreement would only be subject
to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements and are exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under the Listing Rules.

On 22 December 2014, the services agreement has been further renewed for another term of three years commencing
on 1 January 2015. Further details were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 22 December 2014.



EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

44

(2) Lease of industrial complex
On 23 December 2013, the tenancy agreement which was entered into between a subsidiary of the Company and a
related company in relation to the lease of an industrial complex in Changzhou had been further renewed for another
term of three years commencing on 1 January 2014 after the expiry of the second term. The related company is
currently controlled by an executive director of the Company and the close family members of two executive directors
of the Company. Further details were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 23 December 2013.

The continuing connected transactions contemplated under this tenancy agreement would only be subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements and are exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under the Listing Rules.

(3) Lease of warehouse
A subsidiary of the Company has been leasing a warehouse in Hong Kong from an executive director of the Company.
The continuing connected transaction under the tenancy agreement constitutes a de minimis transaction under the
Listing Rules and is exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

(4) Consultancy fee
A substantial shareholder who is the spouse of an executive director of the Company has been engaged as a consultant
of the Company for a term of one year with effect from 25 March 2014. The continuing connected transaction under
the consultancy agreement also constitutes a de minimis transaction under the Listing Rules and is exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing
Rules.

Details of these continuing connected transactions of the Group are set out in notes 13(a)(i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) to the financial
statements.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions disclosed in (1) and (2) above and confirmed that these continuing connected transactions
have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The total amounts in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed in (1) and (2) above during the year under
review have not exceeded the annual caps for the transactions.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above, the directors of the Company confirm that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year under
review.
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The Company has also received a letter from Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued the letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed in (1) and (2) above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules confirming that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe the continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the transactions;
and

(iii) have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual caps disclosed in previous announcements of the Company.

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Ngok Ming Chu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2015
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Independent Auditors” Report

B B A RS

EY =x

To the shareholders of Embry Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Embry
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 91 to 176, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2014, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

B ZBARE (F)

Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2015

ZERNNEE )

EHh B ETIE LB Bl A B IS Rk
SERBBAR Y BHESE - R Y RFEGR
BT R BT - SIS R Sk R T
Wi A NS REFEEARREUR A RR - 27
R ERRE - X BT S R A 7R RS A B
4R SR B B 1 A T 4 R BAR B O P BB e -
A EHEE MBS F B E ML IEHA TR
EHME R REES - B T RETEEEH
EARTHRENA B R AT A EY -
AR ES A RSB E MRS H = -

HPBEE RAMESZEHRERRTRINES
R FNESERIRHER -

=R

BARR  ZEFEPBRERCRIKEBHMBER
SEADEEMA TR EARANE EXER
Z-NE+-A=1T—HOMBERAKL EEEE
EZELEFEMRANEREERE  YEEREL
(RBEPDOWEREZ SRR -

ZXREHENEIEFT
BEDE AT

B5E

FIRATEE 15
FlERE221E

—E-RFE=A=-+WMH



ZHRIFTEIRBR AT £ 2014

Consolidated Income Statement
=AN P
:%UK (=) LI& T
Year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—F+_A=+—HILFE
2014 2013
—E-mF =5
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
KaE FHT FET
REVENUE &3 5 2,383,127 2,234,763
Cost of sales $HEE Ak AN (422,922) (437,880)
Gross profit EF 1,960,205 1,796,883
Other income and gains, net HEalg A KWz 0 JFRE 6 37,976 76,147
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAY (1,485,498) (1,375,742)
Administrative expenses THAX (234,932) (213,641)
Other expenses HEFEX 7 (6,924) (7,230)
Finance costs R E AR 8 (2,270) (2,754)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RR%E A= T 9 268,557 273,663
Income tax expense ARSI 12 (80,464) (75,294)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AATEE AEMN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO FEER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 14 188,093 198,369
EARNINGS PER SHARE EATEE AEMN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO BRER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 16
— Basic (HK cents) —EA (BL) 45.14 47.61
— Diluted (HK cents) — 558 OB(L) 45.14 47.61
Details of the dividends are disclosed in note 15 to the financial A% SRR IB E B SRR FE 15 ©

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEeEHEWE R

Year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ =T —WF+=-A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-MF —ET—=fF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERF 188,093 198,369
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) Eft2EW A~ (BIxX)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) to be ~ RHEZHFEAIEH D EEEEH
reclassified to the income statement in Hip 2@k A/ (FX)
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences arising on WERINEEREL
translation of foreign operations PE =R (14,196) 40,143
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME EATEEAEBLEE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO ZHEHWABE

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 173,897 238,512
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ra AR R
ra AR
31 December 2014 —Z—F+=HA=+—H
2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F
Notes HK$7000 HK$000
liogz3 FET F&r
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER Y 17 911,289 677,473
Investment properties REME 18 318,699 321,054
Prepaid land lease payments B LA ERRIE 19 38,989 40,407
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE = 29 72,129 47,111
Deposits b 22 17,061 9,787
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 1,358,167 1,095,832
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories B 20 722,619 567,448
Trade receivables e E 5 8RN 21 89,961 87,076
Prepayments, deposits and other BNFR - Re REARER
receivables NI 22 58,412 54,797
Cash and cash equivalents Be kR EEY 24 180,105 346,327
Total current assets REEEEE 1,051,097 1,055,648
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and bills payables [EN B FRTR R ENER 25 146,527 89,145
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STEERTTIE R 26 90,639 56,750
Tax payable JERTIE 74,598 44,298
Other payables and accruals Hoth & 018 R B ET RO 27 222,343 210,126
Total current liabilities mBRBEE 534,107 400,319
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 516,990 655,329
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERRDAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,875,157 1,751,161
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBER
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AT BIRITIE K 26 94,361 65,000
Deferred liabilities LB E 28 4,070 3,879
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIBEE 29 32,161 30,190
Other payables Hip IR 27 - 23,846
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEAE 130,592 122,915
Net assets EEFE 1,744,565 1,628,246
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
e IR R (&)

31 December 2014 —Z—F+=-A=+—H

2014 2013
=k —F-=F
Notes HK$000 HK$000
et FET TET
EQUITY ez
Equity attributable to owners ADEEEAEGES
of the Company
Issued capital BETRA 30 4,166 4,166
Reserves R 32(a) 1,740,399 1,624,080
Total equity BRER 1,744,565 1,628,246
Ngok Ming Chu Cheng Pik Ho Liza
EK BREE
Director Director

EZ EFE



RHFIERERAT 44 2014 -

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

e D

BEE

—=

Year ended 31 December 2014 HZE ==

ME+—A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

95

ERTREAEL
Reserves
B
Enterprise
expansion
and
Share Asset  statutory  Exchange Share
Isued ~ premium  Contributed  revaluation reserve  fluctuation  Goodwill option Retained Total Total
capital account surplus reserve funds reserve reserve reserve profits reserves equity
B&f Kt BEER LEBRR  ENRD BhE
Bx HER  EHER BE  iedke BE  HEEE B REEA ARk ARk
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i T FAL FAL AT T TEr T#r TEr AT T A1
(note 32(a)) (note 32(a)) (note 32(a))
(Wit32) (Wit 32) (Wt 320)
At January 2014 W=F-mE-A-B 4166 36964 122610 3,336 M0 14679 (B168) 34303 876225 1624080  1,62846
Profitfor the year EEER - - - - - - = - 188,093 188,093 188,093
Exchange differences arising on TERNEBMELL
translation of foreign operations EizR - - - - - (14,196) - - - (14,196) (14,196)
Total comprehensive income for the year ERRENALE - - - - - (14,196) - - 188,093 173,897 173,897
Equity-setfled share option arangements  bER [ ZBREZH 31 - - - - - - - 754 - 754 754
Share options lapsed BRIELH - - - - - - - 2.273) 2273 - -
2013 final and special dividends ERRXM-F-=£58
declared and paid RERIRE 15 - - - - - - - - (41,666) (41,666) (41,666)
2014 interim dividend “E-MERERE 15 - - - - - - - - (16666) (16,666 (16,666)
Transfer from retained profits BAREET - - - - 23,351 - - - (23,351) - -
At31 December 2014 W-F-ME+-A=+-B 4166 36064 122610 3,336 761 1325% (G168 32784 94908 1740399 1744565
At1 January 2013 4,166 369,644 122,610 3,336 52,198 106,647 3,168) 28,759 753,044 1,433,070 1,437,236
Profit or the year FRET B - - - - - - - 198,369 198,369 198,369
Exchange differences arising on FREEMEEY
translation of foreign operations EHZE - - - - - 40,143 - = - 40,143 40,143
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENAER - - - - - 40,143 = - 198,369 238,512 238,512
qity-settled share option arrangements INERY [2 BRER S 31 = = = = = = = 6,063 = 6,663 6,663
Share options lapsed EREXH - - - - - - - (1,119) 1119 - -
2012 final and special dividends BRRXA-E-Z554
declared and paid BERIRE 15 - - - - - - - - (37499 (37499 (74%9)
2013 interim dividend 2 =FRERE 15 - - - - - - - - (16,6660 (16,666)  (16,666)
Transfer from retained profits EHREET - = B B 2,14 = = - (22,142 - =
At31 December 2013 R-E-=£+-A=1-B 4166 369,644 122,610 3,336 74340 146,790 3,168) 34303 876,225 1,624,080 1,628,246
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEHETRER

Year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ =T —WF+=-A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
Notes HK$7000 HK$000
izt FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B2t A A 268,557 273,663
Adjustments for: PR
Finance costs RE R A 8 2,270 2,754
Bank interest income RITH B WA 6 (1,708) (4,220)
Depreciation e 9 36,432 33,313
Amortisation of prepaid land ARt LA ERE
lease payments i3] 9 907 891
Loss on disposal/write-off of items HE MEEE - BB &
of property, plant and equipment BLCIEIEDd i 9 593 275
Provision/(write-back of provision) BREFEEE (BERE) -
for obsolete inventories, net R 9 (4,062) 42,208
Impairment/(write-back of impairment B E 5 ERFRE
allowance) of trade receivables (O (B B 55 m]) 9 1,220 (47)
Changes in fair value of REWERTEE
investment properties 9 (1,000) (4,000)
Equity-settled share option LARRRE S 1 2 B R 2
expense 31 754 6,663
303,963 351,500
Increase in inventories Z &N (151,109) (87,484)
Increase in trade receivables JEWE 5 BRFRIE N (4,105) (7,131)
Increase in prepayments, AR FRIE - e R HE M ERIE
deposits and other receivables 840 (10,901) (14,068)
Increase in trade and bills payables JEAS B 5 BR 51 N B A5 24548 D 57,382 50,126
Increase in other payables LA A FRIA IR FE AT IR AN
and accruals 12,217 35,117
Increase/(decrease) in deferred BB EIL I CRd)
liabilities 191 (158)
Cash generated from operations KBTS G 207,638 327,902
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEFENEH (500) (640)
Overseas taxes paid B ARESNEIE (72,944) (64,225)
Net cash flows from REEXBZREMAHE
operating activities 134,194 263,037
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
PAN = =
SEREMER(E)
Year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ =T —WF+=A=+—HILFE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=%F
Notes HK$7000 HK$000
Hitat FHET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B FIE 1,708 4,220
Purchases of items of property, BEWE  BELEZEEE
plant and equipment 17, 27 (303,195) (199,399)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - BEMEBEIEER
property, plant and equipment Z Frig k18 205 38
Decrease in a non-pledged time REARRIBHRAZN=
deposit with original maturity of Z BRI T BATE RO A
more than three months when
acquired - 3,704
Net cash flows used in WEEE 2R R FEE
investing activities (301,282) (191,437)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEETHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings FIGIRITREK 120,000 i
Repayment of bank borrowings ERBITRER (56,750) (56,750)
Dividends paid EfRE 15 (58,332) (54,165)
Interest paid ERFE (2,270) (2,754)
Net cash flows from/(used in) MEEFHZ2BERACRL)
financing activities k-] 2,648 (113,669)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERBEESEN IR FHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (164,440) (42,069)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzHeRBEEED
beginning of year 346,327 379,092
Effect of foreign exchange MEREE) 75 FE
rate changes, net (1,782) 9,304
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEEREASEEY
AT END OF YEAR 180,105 346,327
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF REeRReSENEHR 2D
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Ba RRITEH 24 180,105 346,327
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Statement of Financial Position

BB AR 3R

31 December 2014 —Z—F+=-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-NE —E—=fF
Notes HK$7000 HK$7000
MaE FET FEIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries N IENGIPA o 23 836,336 636,793
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and TANFRIE - BEe R
other receivables H b fE Y FRI8 22 46 48
Cash and cash equivalents HekIREEEY 24 44 364
Total current assets mEBEEAE 90 412
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals A FE A FRIE K
JESTFRIE 27 7,593 8,517
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (7,503) (8,105)
Net assets BEFE 828,833 628,688
EQUITY e
Issued capital B ETAR A 30 4,166 4,166
Reserves b 32(b) 824,667 624,522
Total equity R 828,833 628,688

Ngok Ming Chu
LS
Director

EE

Cheng Pik Ho Liza
BRI
Director

EE



Notes to Financial Statements
B 5 3R 3R B

31 December 2014 —Z—F+=HA=+—H

1.

2.1

Corporate Information 1.
The Company was incorporated as an exempted company

with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 29 August

2006 under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961,

as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The

registered office address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,

the Cayman Islands and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at 7th Floor, Wyler Centre 1, 200 Tai Lin

Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 23 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Harmonious World Limited
(“Harmonious World”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), which is considered by the directors
as the Company’s ultimate holding company.

Basis of Preparation 21
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance relating to the preparation
of financial statements, which for this financial year and the
comparative period continue to be those of the predecessor
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with
transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and
Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11
to that Ordinance. The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HK$'000) except where otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

g ETE A

31 December 2014 —Z—F+=-A=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2014. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared

for the same reporting period as the Company, using

consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are

consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains

control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that

such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one

or more of the three elements of control described in the

accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in the consolidated income statement. The
Group's share of components previously recognised in other

comprehensive income is reclassified to the consolidated

income statement or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly

disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

D ETE A

31 December 2014 —Z—F+=HA=+—H

2.2

Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and
new interpretation for the first time for the current year’s

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Amendment to HKFRS 2
included in Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 3
included in Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 13
included in Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 1
included in Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

U Effective from 1 July 2014

Investment Entities

Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for

Non-Financial Assets
Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge

Accounting

Levies

Definition of Vesting Condition’

Accounting for Contingent

Consideration in a Business

Combination’

Short-term Receivables and

Payables

Meaning of Effective HKFRSs

2.2

EHEERD RS

AEERANFERBRRERXRANATE
BRI 2 ERI S AT 2R -

FRMBREEAE 105

BRHEREER
B2 RA B HEE
£27% (2011) 3]

BRI ERE 2R ET
BRGEAZ 36K E

BRI EAE 9 ET

Bt (ERIBaERE
288)-2BENH

ERIBAS S
BIRA-E-F4E
—E-ZEBHNTE
it

BANREENZ IS
BIIMA—E—F£Z
—E-—FRENEE
i

ERIBRLENS 8
BIRA=F-§52
~F R
G-

BBGEREERE 15
BIMA=E——FZF
ZE-CEHENER
2

EHEHEERTRRE

HEREETHOLBRE

ITETANEE REPES
Mg

i

FEBFtHES!

EHEHF AR BB

BE

RHRURENTE

EREEAFREER 2 B%

! B-Z LA -BREER



EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

102

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
B SRR I 5T (48)

31 December 2014 —Z—F+=-A=+—H

2.2

Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

Other than explained below regarding the impact of the
amendments to HKAS 32, HKFRS 2 and HKFRS 13, the
adoption of the above revised standards and new
interpretation has had no significant financial effect on these

financial statements.

(a)

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set off” for
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The
amendments also clarify the application of the
offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems
(such as central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not
simultaneous. The amendments have had no impact
on the Group as the Group does not have any
offsetting arrangement.

The HKFRS 2 Amendment clarifies various issues
relating to the definitions of performance and service
conditions which are vesting conditions, including (i) a
performance condition must contain a service
condition; (ii) a performance target must be met while
the counterparty is rendering service; (iii) a
performance target may relate to the operations or
activities of an entity, or to those of another entity in
the same group; (iv) a performance condition may be a
market or non-market condition; and (v) if the
counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to
provide service during the vesting period, the service
condition is not satisfied. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group.

The HKFRS 13 Amendment clarifies that short-term
receivables and payables with no stated interest rates
can be measured at invoice amounts when the effect
of discounting is immaterial. The amendment has had
no impact on the Group.
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2.3 New and Revised HKFRSs and New 2.3 r'ﬁ X L T I CHES
Disclosure Requirements under the Hong B EREER R EFE(D T
Kong Companies Ordinance Not Yet {I,Mﬁlj))l BTHIRERTE
Adopted
The Group has not applied the following new and revised NEBWAREMEREERTHEBME
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in R AT RIS BB I AR R %
these financial statements. 8l o
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments* BRI HELEREE  SETA
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between ERERBERRZ 0% ALEHAABLGALNGY

and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or LEBQHERE 285 BHEEL A
Joint Venture* 2011){&3]
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the EEREREERE0% . RETE: EFLANEY

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendment to HKAS 19

Amendment to HKAS 27
(20171)

Annual Improvements

Consolidated Exception’

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
Revenue from Contracts with Customers’®
Disclosure Initiative®

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation*

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions'

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements?

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'

BEUTREENZ 128
REAGEAE 285
(011)&3T

BRNBREEAE 1R
L1l

BEMBREERE 145
BRMBREEE 155
FBGHENS 1 e

BRI EAZ 165N
ER G ERF 385 B

BRI EAZ 165N
EREIHENE N RET

BEGERNE19RET

BAEIERE275.2011)
&3]
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CHEZ S el

2010-2012 Cycle BEHEENE
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs' ZE—FF-F-TF BILBEEANKEEEN
2011-2013 Cycle BEHEE EJaE
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs? E—EZ-F-ME BHSEELREREEL?
2012-2014 Cycle BEOEENE
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 1 R_Z—NF+H— Bk ARRIEEF
VHHF%E 2
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 R-Z i\i A— B A ERREE
2016 ' o R
9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 R_T—+F—HA— B ARFRIRF
2017 ' . s
= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 4 R-ZT—\FE— A —HABRBRNF
2018 . , , JZ BRI A2
3 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual 5 U NN B BB TS R R e
financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and FEHAR—_E—RNE—HA—B%2ERB

therefore is not applicable to the Group
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23 New and Revised HKFRSs and New
Disclosure Requirements under the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Not Yet
Adopted (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. The Group is not yet in a position to state
whether they would have a significant impact on the Group’s
results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
will affect the presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ending 31 December 2015. The Group is in the process
of making an assessment of the impact of these changes.

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

() the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and

receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value, which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
the income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value either
recognised in the income statement or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is not
within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance
with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in the income
statement as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level T - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
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24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill and financial assets is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If
the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to
the income statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to the income statement to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in
respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits
as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Over the lease terms
4.5% to 20%
10% to 20%
10% to 20%

Leasehold land and buildings
Leasehold improvements
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and

office equipment

Motor vehicles 20% to 25%
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and equipment
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of an
investment property are included in the income statement in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement
in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between
the carrying amount and the fair value of the property is
accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” above.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the income statement. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the income statement in finance
costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)
the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
income statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period;
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value after making due allowances for obsolete or slow
moving items. Cost is determined on the weighted average
basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on the
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in
the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings spending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

2.4

FTESTHTHERE o)

REeERBAEEEY
RREEERERER AEeMAEFE
MERFRESREMER  AREHD
7‘u’f§ﬁ’|‘ﬂ§i§(%%FL%“%E%%EE’JEE

REEZEPARNABREHR (—KRE
)\@:Tﬁﬁé_ﬂﬂ)) B2 2 SR Y
RITEX  ABXNAEENREERTE
B e

SREMBHIREK  REMASFEME
BFRESMRITER - BEAETER
HHERFARERSEERUZEE -

RN

AR ZRILECEREES(AIRE
—BREREEEE FERER GRS
EWEE) TEREENERERA  JHT I
BARERGEFEEXRAZ —BD - fHE
ZEEECKBEENAERTEREL D
& EEERATBTAER(L - @RIE
ERHARRAEREEMMBELRHER
B PRI ERARKD ERMCHE
ERAFMEE - IAEEMEERARESL
HAXHE BERAEREREEAZS
RFTELRNE REMAA -

BiE
EHNBESHERIRKAAREAENHE
EEEMARKRAEEARRERUNBEITE
£ BRerl St EE 85 grR
Bt o

HEMREEEX - AIMERZBEHER
%%EETEHEEF)T%ZKIF;‘%EZE?&E‘EHH

MAEHE A 23R (E - BER R R IR (B 18
M2 KB AR BERA



RHRIFTIEIRBR AT £ 2014

119

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

R RS e

(%)

31 December 2014 —Z—F+=HA=+—H

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside the income statement is
recognised either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available

against which the deductible temporary differences, the

carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can

be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition

of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the

transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and

J in respect of deductible temporary differences

associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in

the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be

available against which the temporary differences can

be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it

is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates

that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is

realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

Dividend income derived from the Company’s subsidiaries in

Mainland China is subject to a withholding tax under the

prevailing tax rules and regulations of the People’s Republic

of China (“PRC").
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24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;
(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective

interest rate method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.
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24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the expenditure
incurred in the construction cost of infrastructure projects, are
recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to an
asset, the fair value is deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released to the income statement by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“Equity-settled Transactions”).

The cost of Equity-settled Transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of Equity-settled Transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled
in employee benefit expense. The cumulative expense
recognised for Equity-settled Transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.
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24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for Equity-settled Transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as an
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of these employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in

Mainland China are required to participate in a central

pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.

These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentages of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the income

statement as they become payable in accordance with the

rules of the central pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the

payment of termination benefits.

Foreign currencies
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation

currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial

statements of each entity are measured using that functional

currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their

respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary

items are recognised in the income statement.
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24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of
a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or income statement is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or income statement, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their income statements are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased out
on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences as at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

As explained in note 29 to the financial statements,
withholding tax is levied on dividends to be distributed by
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008. Deferred tax is
provided, at the applicable withholding tax rate, on the
undistributed earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries that
would be distributed to their respective holding companies
outside Mainland China in the foreseeable future.

The Group’s investment properties at fair value in Mainland
China are all held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation and they are considered to be held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties at fair value is measured than through sale.
Accordingly, deferred tax on the Group’s investment
properties at fair value is measured to reflect the tax
consequences of recovering the carrying amounts of the
investment properties though use.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(@) by reference to independent valuations;

(b) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location (or subject to
different leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences;
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties (continued)

(©) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the dates of the transactions
that occurred at those prices; and

(d) discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts, and (where
possible) from external evidence such as current
market rates for similar properties in the same location
and condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty in the
amount and timing of cash flows.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in
note 18 to the financial statements.

Properties applying for building ownership certificates

As of 31 December 2014, the Group had not obtained the
building ownership certificates for certain properties located
in Mainland China and was still in the progress of completing
the application of these certificates. The Group believes that it
is highly possible for the Group to obtain these certificates.
Thus, no impairment of the aforesaid properties was
considered necessary as of 31 December 2014. This is the
best estimation by the management based on current
information. Further details are given in note 17 to the
financial statements.

Valuation of share options

The fair value of options granted under the share option
scheme is determined using the binomial model. The
significant inputs in determining the fair values include the
weighted average share price at the grant date, exercise price,
risk-free interest rate, dividend yield, expected volatility,
expected life of options, and exit rate of directors and staff.
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4.

Segment Information

The Group’s primary operating segment is the manufacture
and sale of ladies’ brassieres, panties, swimwear and
sleepwear. Since this is the only operating segment of the

Group, no further analysis thereof is presented. In determining
the Group’s geographical information, the revenue

information is based on the locations of the customers, and

the total non-current assets information, other than deferred

tax assets, is based on the locations of the assets.
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Mainland China Hong Kong Others Total
HE AR BiE Hitr st
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
—R-mF —T-=F —B-NF —T-=-F ZB-NF —FT-=F ZB-NF —FT-=
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$%000  HKS$/000
FET TET FET FET FET FET FET TBT
Revenue from external INREP 2 W
customers 2269951 2,123,956 103,794 102,347 9,362 8460 2,383,127 2,234,763
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,209,486 972,278 76,552 76,443 - - 1,286,038 1,048,721
Capital expenditure incurred ~ FRERFEZ
during the year 279113 198,969 236 430 - - 279349 199,399
For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, as no BE_T-NFR-_FT—=ZF1+2ZA
revenue from sales to any customer of the Group has =t—HLEFE dRAEELEENE
individually accounted for over 10% of the Group's total B 2 $HE W s {8 Al 15 25 52 B 4B M & 10% BA
revenue, no information about major customers is presented b BAARBRBEEEVBREERIFE K
under HKFRS 8. EREFBEFHER -
Revenue 5. W&
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the Was - BIREEZ S8 BHREE

net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns

and trade discounts.

RHFHFBRELEmIERFE -
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6. Other Income and Gains, Net 6. HmWwARWZE » F28
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—F-mFE T =F
HK$7000 HK$000
FET T
Other income H A
Subsidy income* AR A * 28,443 43,674
Gross rental income Ha WAL 11,036 6,654
Contingent rents receivable in respective of A& T EM Bk AT S
operating lease 833 -
Bank interest income RITHBIA 1,708 4,220
Royalty income =W 3N 160 247
Others Hit 2,571 1,618
44,751 56,413
Gains, net Wi FE
Foreign exchange differences, net ERER  FE (7,775) 15,734
Changes in fair value of investment BREMENTEES (HiF18)
properties (note 18) 1,000 4,000
(6,775) 19,734
37,976 76,147

* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating &

to this income.

UEHRA IEAE S R AF ] R 2 AR 3 B

AFEIF -
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B R M T (48)
31 December 2014 —ZE—MF+-A=+—H
7. Other Expenses 7. Hpix
Group
REE
2014 2013
—E-NFE —FT=F
HK$7000 HK$000
FET T
Charitable donation EEBR 6,331 6,955
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HE  MEEME - BE KR
property, plant and equipment XBEE ZEBE 593 275
6,924 7,230
8.  Finance Costs 8. MBI
Group
rEE
2014 2013
=E-mFE —F=
HK$7000 HK$000
FET T
Total interest on bank loans wholly AT FRNBEIERE 2 RIRTT
repayable within five years (RS 2,270 2,754
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9.

Profit Before Tax

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

9. PBRBiALRA

ARz BBATRMEMBR,GEA)

(crediting):
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—F-mE  —T-=F
HK$000 HK$000
FET T#ET
Cost of inventories sold* BEERERAE* 422,922 437,880
Depreciation e 36,432 33,313
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments  FA{st £ 3h FH & /I8~ # 5 907 891
Minimum lease payments under ﬁﬁﬁLATﬂlﬁmﬁfﬂi’JZ
operating leases in respect of: REEEHIE
Land and buildings if@&@+ 80,580 75,368
Contingent rents of retail outlets BERAATER
in department stores R AT S 598,334 549,207
Employee benefit expenses (excluding RERMNAX (TEREES
directors” and chief executive’s NITHABRFHM — #fat10)
remuneration — note 10):
Wages and salaries IENRF® 656,122 575,527
Provision/(write-back of provision) for RERG B, (B ERE)
long service payments 368 (55)
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIRERET 2R 58,671 51,659
Equity-settled share option expense VARSCHE 32 A5 B A HE 7 2 556 5,901
715,717 633,032
Auditors’ remuneration G 2,940 2,860
Advertising and counter decoration expenses &2 B S A 2 161,556 153,295
Provision/(write-back of provision) for BRETERME (BEHRL) -
obsolete inventories, net FEE (4,062) 42,208
Impairment/(write-back of impairment JEWRE 5 BRFRE,
allowance) of trade receivables** CRUE R (O] ) ** 1,220 (47)
Research and development expenditure o kAR 2,779 3,311
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HE  MEME - BE R
property, plant and equipment RBIEA 2 BB 593 275
Gross and net rental income e WA LRTE RO (11,869) (6,654)
Changes in fair value of investment properties 15%& ) 2 /A (& & (1,000 (4,000)
Foreign exchange differences, net EHER  FHE 7,775 (15,734)
Bank interest income RITAEWA (1,708) (4,220)

The cost of inventories sold for the year included

HK$156,410,000 (2013: HK$153,878,000), relating to staff
costs, depreciation of manufacturing facilities, minimum lease
payments under operating leases in respect of land and
buildings and the net provision/(write-back of provision) for
obsolete inventories, which are also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed above for each type of expenses.

*k

The impairment/(write-back of impairment allowance) of

Kk

trade receivables is included in “Administrative expenses” on
the face of the consolidated income statement.

EEFEXABEE LK - #iE

ey

WME L RIEFLERLH T RIEHE
HER R E B (FEREE) F5E
#156,410,000)8 7w ( = T — = 4F :
153,878,000/87T) - HRAEFE N E A
U FHEZSIEIEBRESTF -

FEWE G AR BB, CRl B R E]) -
Bt AfmEd iz ke [{TBFAX A -
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10.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration

10. EZE 1T AR = BN

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BIERBBMARZHEARAT ([T
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of A PR AT ETRE ) REEAFIE
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the Bl (FEe2=)ME11FE 781K (2 RBAIEE
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) and section 78 of NAEMGEDI(E32F) F1611F) WEHNFA
Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. EENITHRAHFNNT :

622), which reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mFE  —T-=F
HK$7000 HK$000
FET FET
Fees e 912 861
Other emoluments: HAb S -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEEEWERN 6,354 7,391
Bonuses* TEAL* 11,820 6,352
Equity-settled share option expense VARR #E 32+ 2 B AR M A =2 198 762
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RNAEFIET B R 36 45
19,320 15,411
& Executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus z ARRFARTEFFREERZEA > ME
payments which are determined as a percentage of the profit AL FBRIBEAEBR B S —FF
after tax of the Group. DIHEE -
The fair value of the share options granted in prior years, ARBEEHRAERERERNBRME - B
which has been recognised in the income statement over the NFEREL BHPERE - StARFEMB
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the BRI A LB F R ITEAREH
amount included in the financial statements for the current BEEER -

year is included in the above directors” and chief executive’s

remuneration disclosures.
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10.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 10. EERITHERFIN 2
Remuneration (continued)
2014 —E—puE
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled  Retirement
and share benefit
benefits option scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses expense contributions  remuneration
e UREXM
=393 ZBRE  RBIKER
we EWAE A Ax  ETEEX BEMH
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$7000 HK$7000 HK$7000
FET FiEn FiEx FiEn FiEn FEn
Executive directors: HITEE -
Madam Ngok Ming Chu ERHLL - 3,096 3,148 6 16 6,266
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza* HE gt - 2,648 2,846 158 16 5,668
Mr. Cheng Man Tai* R LE - 610 5,826 4 4 6,444
- 6,354 11,820 168 36 18,378
Independent non-executive BUIHT
directors: EE
Mr. Lau Siu Ki RSt 304 - - 10 - 314
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung TEEE 304 - - 10 - 314
Prof. Lee T. S. FREHR 304 - - 10 - 314
912 - - 30 - 942
912 6,354 11,820 198 36 19,320
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
?5-( +| 2y (4=
E\Zl- V] #&43—% B1{|- HI (lnﬁ )
31 December 2014 —ZE—WE+—-A=+—H
Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 10. EERTHERFIN 2
Remuneration (continued)
2013 —E—=
Salaries, Equity-
allowances setled  Retirement
and share benefit
benefits option scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration
e DA 32 5t
=L ZEIRE  RIREN
e EYNE el FAx BB il
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET TET
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Cheng Man Tai L= 6oS i - 2,649 2,290 14 15 4,968
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza* HEErte = 2,499 2,109 600 15 5,223
Madam Ngok Ming Chu ERR L - 2,243 1,953 25 15 4,236
- 7,391 6,352 639 45 14,427
Independent non-executive BUIEHT
directors: EFE:
Mr. Lau Siu Ki Bl@ErE 287 = = 41 = 328
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung E32Ss 287 - - 41 = 328
Prof. Lee T. S. FREHR 287 - - 41 - 328
861 - - 123 - 984
861 7,391 6,352 762 45 15,411
0 Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, a director of the Company, is also the 9 AR A EFYEEL T IEFELRRNELZ
chief executive officer of the Company. TTIABE, -
i Mr. Cheng Man Tai resigned as an executive director of the & BHFEER=—_F—NF=H=+MH

Company on 24 March 2014 and has been engaged as a
consultant of the Company for a term of one year with effect
from 25 March 2014. Details of the consultancy fee are
disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.

There were no arrangements under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year.

BEANABTEFZR TH=-F
—WE=F =+ HAEEZERARA]
B RE—F - BB IERA B
KM 13 5255 -

BRI AL EE FHITREH 2 WKF
BERWUEAH N 25k -
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11.  Five Highest Paid Individuals

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2013: three) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 10 to the financial statements above.
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two
(2013: two) highest paid employees who are neither directors B EB ZEHMNEEBIT

11. AEBRESHAT

FARLERSHFALBRE=2E=(=F
—=%F:=%) HFMABCR EXHB
WAMEI0EM - FREBME(ZF
—=F  MB)FARREEFRITHAEEZ

nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

Group

rEH
2014 2013
—E-mE —ZT=F
HK$7000 HK$’000
FHET FEIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERREYFIZE 2,573 2,510
Bonuses TEAL 2,248 1,165
Equity-settled share option expense VARR 1 3 - R AR R A 2 108 407
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFET B 70 67
4,999 4,149

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following

bands is as follows:

RaFEEAZINT

MBI A T AR 2 SFE S RORTTIAREL

Number of employees

EEAH
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 B T2 1,500,000 77T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T E 2,000,000 7 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 87T 2,500,000 78 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7L E 3,000,000 7T 1 -
2 2
The fair value of the share options granted in prior years, TREBHANERZREZNERE &
which has been recognised in the income statement over the NFERRL BHEE  StARFEMH
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the MRS A LM IEEE R IFITIRER
amount included in the financial statements for the current e EEMERESENA -

year is included in the above non-director and non-chief

executive highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.
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12.

Income Tax 12. FriS®i
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% EBNEHIEEERNGEAESEELEZ
(2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in FERBEF #H165%( T — = &F:
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable 16.5%) Z Bt RAEH i o HAbith 5 FEERH
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing WA ZHRMIERIEAEE RS E:BHE 2 B
in the regions in which the Group operates. BRI RETE o
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-mE 2=
HK$7000 HK$’000
FET FET
Group: REH :
Current — Hong Kong BIEARTE — &8
Charge for the year FRHIA 754 547
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBREREE (10) (10)
Current — Mainland China BNHAR 18 — A B K B
Charge for the year FARHIEA 94,550 87,240
Underprovision/(overprovision) BEFEZ VIR (HBE)
in prior years BiE (46) 5
Deferred (note 29) IRE (BH7E29) (14,784) (12,488)
Total tax charge for the year FEZEHREA N 80,464 75,294

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rates for the regions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax

expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

AR B] R BR ER A B B A Bl st i (& 2
EERERBEBADE N E 2 HIBRAX
BEERAERTEGFE 2 HIARXNE RN
T

Group

rEE
2014 2013
—F-mFE =%
HK$7000 HK$000
FET T
Profit before tax R T BT S A 268,557 273,663
Tax at the applicable rates ERM R R 2 HIE 68,460 69,263
Overprovision in prior years BEFE 2 BRI (56) (5)
Income not subject to tax BRRTZ WA (165) (2,528)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT 2 7 32 4,473 5,076

Effect of withholding tax at 5% and 10% HAREE 2 R B AR A

on the distributable profits of the Group’s 2K MU 5% & 10%

PRC subsidiaries SEEIL s 7 10,272 5,473
Tax losses not recognised RHERTIBE B 7,109 2,957
Others Ht (9,629) (4,942)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BRASEZERHEGE

PIE S H 80,464 75,294
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13. Related Party Transactions

13. BBEEALRS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a) B i B TR SR 5 B SRR Bt > &%
these financial statements, the Group had the following SN REBRERNESEEA T
material transactions with related parties during the WITBEAZSNT
year:

2014 2013
—B-mE —T=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
et FET T
Continuing transactions HERXS
Purchases of furniture and [ARRE A AIiE B ARG M
decoration services for JE 8 2 R R R AE PR TS
counters and shops as well as AR SRR A
different types of moulds from
related companies (i) 20,255 20,992
Rental expenses for a property FE RN R WA E 2
charged by a related company HeM> (i) 2,962 2,871
Rental expenses for a ARREFWIREEZ
warehouse charged by GiEkalb-a
a director of the Company (iii) 167 159
Consultancy fee to a controlling  AIZRZA &% AR 3R
shareholder of the Company ST ZERE (iv) 972 -

Notes: Hizt -

(i) The purchases of furniture and decoration services (i) Al f Z} Al —% }?%HQ?% éﬁ i
for counters and shops as well as different types of AT % = E"J 52T HE % BE R
moulds from related companies controlled by a son AlfE B &Eﬁ%% ﬁAEﬁ%
of a controlling shareholder and a then executive fE PR 5 LA %%ﬁiﬂ 1R B {5k
director of the Company were made according to the ;7;’5 = ﬁ }LT#\FEE\ T IE 2 fR
terms similar to those offered by the Group’s fff\jfﬁ HeR_F —HA S =
independent suppliers. The balances owed to related =+—H 7( @Eﬁ ERA Zi%ﬁ%
companies as at 31 December 2014 were 8,839,00078 7T (ZF—=%:
HK$8,839,000 (2013: HK$7,904,000) and were 7,904,000 A7) Eﬁiﬁﬁ 2
unsecured, interest-free and repayable in accordance E éziﬁﬁ iﬁz - Q HE 1@5{( B -
with normal trading terms. The amounts have been EZAR N %EiE RE ﬂf% HB3IME
included in other payables and accruals as at the end Hfth & <RIBS FE AR ©
of the year.

(ii) The rental expenses charged by a related company, (i) ARARRITE % K8 E"J W7
which was controlled by an executive director of the ERHEATES % /1—;\ A
Company and close members of the family of the Jﬁﬂy\ Ziﬂ SRR TIBEERZ
then executive directors of the Company, were T SE ©
determined with reference to the then prevailing
market conditions.

(iii) The rental expenses were determined with reference (iii) fﬁ/i\ X W2EERZHRE
to the then prevailing market conditions. JE °

(iv) The terms of consultancy fee was based on an (iv) BERENGRRREBEASER

agreement entered into between the Group and a
controlling shareholder of the Company.

AR B R AR R 2 T Y 1 7

.
E °
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13. Related Party Transactions (continued) 13. BEAEATRS &)
(a) (continued) () (%)
The above continuing transactions constitute ;fﬁ}ﬁtﬁj—;,ﬁb BIEE14AE - A L&
continuing connected transactions as defined in REERIBEBERS S
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and their details are EREELREANWE o
disclosed in the Report of the directors.
The directors are of the opinion that the above EERAE LR BERAEERE
transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of HHORTIRELT o
business of the Group.
(b) Compensation of key management (b)y XKEBFZTEESIEAS ZHM
personnel of the Group
2014 2013
—F-mFE  =ZT=
HK$7000 HK$000
FET FET
Short term employee benefits R HE SR A 24,004 20,604
Post-employment benefits B2 R 319 281
Equity-settled share option expense VAR HE 2 15 2 B AU HE B =2 433 1,632
Total compensation paid to SNTEEEREAE BN
key management personnel 24,756 22,517
Further details of directors’ and chief executive’s EFE RITHAR e FEH N
remuneration are included in note 10 to the financial BER&RMEE10
statements.
14. Profit Attributable to Owners of the 14. RRABHEE ABGREF
Company
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company BE_ZE—NF+_A=+—HIEFER
for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes a loss of Al T?E EAELEaRNBEERE
HK$6,917,000 (2013: HK$9,959,000) which has been dealt 6,917,000 %70 (ZZF—=4 : 9,959,000/8
with in the financial statements of the Company (note 32(b)). 7T)  REEBRERARRFBERERATER

(Ft3E32(b)) ©
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15.

16.

Dividends 15. B2
2014 2013
—2-mE =2 =F
HK$7000 HK$000
FET T
Dividends paid during the year FARAETRE
Final and special in respect of the HE_T—=F+=-H=+—H
financial year ended 31 December 2013 LB R S R A R R AR R
— HK8.0 cents and HK2.0 cents, — DR ASREBER 8.0 &
respectively, per ordinary share 20BI(Z2—=F: 8ZE
(2013: final and special dividends of —E-_F+-HA=+—H
HK7.0 cents and HK2.0 cents, respectively, — 1FBFBUEF & K B & B Rl 8.
per ordinary share in respect of — D RIRERE B 7.0
the financial year ended 31 December 2012)  }2.2.0 7% /ll!) 41,666 37,499
Interim — HK4.0 cents (2013: IS — SR @A 4.0/8 1L
HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share ZE = 4.070) 16,666 16,666
58,332 54,165
Proposed final and special dividends BORAR B R 4551 R 2
Final and special — HK8.0 cents REARHRF RIS — 73515
(2013: HK8.0 cents) and HK2.0 cents BRI E A% 8.0 781
(2013: HK2.0 cents), respectively, (ZZE—=F 8081 &
per ordinary share 208I(ZF—=%F : 2.0() 41,666 41,666

The proposed final and special dividends for the year are
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. These financial
statements do not reflect the final and special dividends
payable.

Earnings Per Share Attributable to Owners  16.
of the Company

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is

based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the

Company of HK$188,093,000 (2013: HK$198,369,000) and
416,661,000 (2013: 416,661,000) ordinary shares in issue

during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013.

F AR AR LRI B A/ AR BBRER
REEBRBFRE LHE - ZFHHR
R ARRRENRBREFRIRSE

ARBERAREESRER

iﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂmﬁﬁimﬁ"ﬂ%ﬁ“ﬁ/\ﬁé
16 3% 7/188,093,00078 7t ( =T — =
198,369,000/ 7T ) & F A E 1T @Hx
416,661,000 % (=Z—=4F : 416,661,000
BRFTE -

AREBREE-Z—NFEF+-A=+—H
FTFEREE-_E—=F+-A=1+—8H
IEFETEEFHTEEEEL AR -
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31 December 2014 —Z—MNFE+=-A=+—H
17.  Property, Plant and Equipment 17. Y% BMENRKE
Group INEE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
landand  Leasehold  Plantand  and office Motor  Construction
buildings  improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
il £E

HEtH  BEMR  HER  RMOE
k&7 L L R RE ERIR #it
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
FEn FER FER FEn FEn FER FER

31 December 2014 “E-ME+-A=t+-AH
Cost: BA:
At1 January 2014 N-B-mE-f-A 488,863 3,690 83,182 167,863 15563 184305 943,486
Additions 5E - - 17,584 2,02 1567 238152 279,349
Disposals/wite-off HE /i - - (5,275 (11,620) (1,042) - (17,93
Transfers B 199,868 - 8,695 7,468 - (216,031) -
Exchange realignment [ 5 % (5,816) - (1,065) (1,942) (157) (2,333) (11,313)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+ZA
S 682,935 3,690 103,121 183,795 15,951 204,093 1,193,585
Accumulated depreciation: e
At1 January 2014 RZZ-ME-A-A 68,693 3,690 53,712 128,561 11,357 - 266,013
Provided during the year FREE 13,221 - 5,869 15,956 1,386 - 36,432
Disposals/write-off e /i - - (4,731) (11,387) (1,021) - (17,139)
Exchange realignment ERHRE (755) - (693) (1,449) (113) - (3,010)
At31 December 2014 RZE-METZA
=1+-A (81,159) 3,690 54157 131,681 11,609 - 282,29
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-MET-A
=t-H 601,776 - 48,964 52,114 4,342 204,093 911,289
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17.  Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 17. Y% - BMENKRE @)
Group INEE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
landand  Leasehold ~ Plantand  and office Motor  Construction
buildings ~ improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
il KB

HEts HEMX  BRR  RELE
EEF S e fE g ERIR it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO000  HKS'000
TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TER

31 December 2013 “E-=F+-H=1-H
Cost: WA
At January 2013 W-F-=%-F-A 482,920 3,690 77848 148,004 13,391 7371 733004
Additions NE - - 3,314 15,606 2,207 178,272 199,399
Disposals/wite-off HE /i - - (1,041) (4,466) (451) - (5,958)
Transfers B 484 = = 3,373 = (3,857) =
Transfer to investment properties BB ERENE (413)
(note) (11,818) - - - - - (11,818)
Exchange realignment i BE 17,297 - 3,061 5,346 416 2,519 28,639
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+=f
=1+-A 488,883 3,690 83,162 167,863 15,563 164,305 943,466
Accumulated depreciation: Z5hE:
At T January 2013 RZE-=%-A-H 56,550 3,690 48211 112,184 10,154 - 230789
Provided during the year EREE 10,794 = 4,496 16,687 1,336 = 33,313
Disposals/write-off & /M - - (936) (4,267) (442) - (5,645)
Transfer to investment properties ~ EBRZHENE
(note) (Hit) (625) = = = = = (625)
Exchange realignment i AR 1974 - 1,941 3,957 309 - 8,181
At31 December 2013 RZF-ZF+2A
=1+-H 08,093 3,690 53,712 128,561 11,357 - 266,013
Net hook value: R -
At31 December 2013 RZZ-=F+=f

=r=F 420,190 - 29,470 39,302 4,206 184,305 677,473




RHRIFTIEIRBR AT £ 2014

143
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
+ 2y (4=
B RS s R ML (8)
31 December 2014 —ZE—WE+—-A=+—H
17.  Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 17. Y% - BMENKE @)
The Group’s leasehold land and buildings at cost included NEERE N THEE EHA Lt LA A
above are held under the following lease terms: GIEE A E - RIEF -
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mFE  —F=F
HK$7000 HK$000
FHETT FET
Medium term leases in Hong Kong REE 2 BT 28,605 28,605
Short term leases outside Hong Kong BBRIN AL 15,505 15,704
Medium term leases outside Hong Kong BRI R EAREAY 635,461 441,167
Long term leases outside Hong Kong BBEIN REAER 3,364 3,407
682,935 488,883
At 31 December 2014, the Group was still in the progress of RZE—ME+-_A=+—8 ' X&£ED
obtaining the building ownership certificates for certain EMBREM AP REKREFROEEYENE
buildings in Mainland China with a net book value of EFMEEBSZFE ZEWMENER
approximately HK$200,735,000 (2013: HK$11,212,000). In F 18 49200,735,0008 T( =T — = F -
the opinion of the directors of the Company, there is no major 11,212,000 7T) - RRBIEZRR - K&
barrier for the Group to obtain these building ownership B SZEWENEEMEEETES
certificates. REHE o
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group rented Hat: BE-ZEZ—=%F+-_A=+—HIF
out one of its occupied properties to an external party for B AEBERIMNIATHHEEETYE
rental income. At the date of change in use, this property NI BBESWA - AMERRREE S
became investment property. Upon the transfer from property, B ZEWERRREDME - B -
plant and equipment to investment properties, this property BEMRIEERTIREMER W
was revalued at HK$11,193,000 which was approximately FEE [ A11,193,000/8 7T @ #IE KB
equal to the carrying amount of HK$11,193,000 at the date & A ZREFE 11,193,000 57T ©

of transfer.
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18.

Investment Properties

18. BREWZE

Group

rEE
2014 2013
—E-NF =
HK$7000 HK$000
FET T
Carrying amount at 1 January N—A—RBZEREE 321,054 296,321
Changes in fair value (notes 6 and 9) RNHERE (HE6 K9) 1,000 4,000

Transfer from owner-occupied properties EEAEEHAYE

(note 17) (HtiE17) - 11,193
Exchange realignment PE H, 8 B (3,355) 9,540
Carrying amount at 31 December R+=ZA=+—RHZEAAE 318,699 321,054

The Group's investment properties are situated at 6th Floor,
Wyler Centre II, 200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong and certain floors of the building
located at No. 508, Kunming Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai
City, the PRC and are held under medium term leases.

The Group's investment properties situated in Hong Kong and
Mainland China were revalued on 31 December 2014 based
on valuations performed by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited, a firm of independent professionally qualified
valuers.

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group's
properties. Selection criteria of an external valuer include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group discusses
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results twice a year when the valuation is performed for
interim and annual financial reporting.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used
in prior years. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 33(a) to the financial statements.

REBZIREYED BN BB 708
REGE2005%ERPL2HeERFE L
BhiHEERKS08 R ZAES TE
AEBEZREMETIRIEHHBORE

AEBZEEMEDIURBFERTEX
EHEVEXSERMGEMTEHERTA
PRAFER -

B AKEZEINBEAEMBESEAE
lZ%%Lﬁ%%ﬁ@ SINEE 4 {26 B B

BERBEMS A  BE  BUMERE
ET%%%%%E AEBBFRRNF
HIRFE B M s IR T (B (4 |
B ERR R AEARETHR °

FEFERZEER AL ELS - PREY
%Zﬁ¥fﬁ%~ﬁﬁ%%2rm&ﬁ&
$7%/\ = H'Jﬁﬁ

&ﬁ%%uméﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁf C HEFE
B TSR KM FE33 (@)



RHRIFTIEIRBR AT £ 2014

145

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
B RS ER R MIEE (48)

31 December 2014 —Z—F+=HA=+—H

18.

Investment Properties (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013 are estimated by
using significant unobservable inputs and the fair value
measurements are categorised under Level 3.

Reconciliation of fair value measurement categorised within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

18.

KREVE &)

N EEZR
RZE—NOF+-_A=+—HE=ZT—=
F+-A=+—H AEENAEATAE
R ABIRAEFT 2 REMEZAFEBER
NEEEAEDERE=ZRIET -

RATREERE=BAHE2 ATEE
B

Group
rEE
Hong Mainland
Kong China
58 A B KR
HK$000 HK$000
T T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—A—HZEAE 52,000 244,321
Changes in fair value recognised in P R N TR
the income statement NFEEZS 4,000 g
Transfer from owner-occupied properties ERRETHAYE = 11,193
Exchange realignment PE 3SR EE - 9,540
Carrying amount at 31 December 2013 and HRZZE—=F+=-A=+—H
at 1 January 2014 M—F—NF—-—H—H
ZAREE 56,000 265,054
Changes in fair value recognised in RERAERZ
the income statement NFEEED 1,000 -
Exchange realignment PE N AR R - (3,355)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—H
ZAREE 57,000 261,699

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3 (2013: Nil).

B(ZE—=F:8&)-

FR F—HEAE_HABRESRATF
EEFE MEEAFZF=-AHEBF=4E
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18.

Investment Properties (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the

18. REWZE &)
NEEESHK &)

AT REEMEGECRGEETEREE

key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: B A SIS B E
Significant
Class of property Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs
MR fh{ER % EXRTABRBARE TUERBANEHE
2014 2013
—F-mE —T=F

Hong Kong Market comparable Gross unit rate HK$2,200 - HK$2,000 —
— Commercial properties method per square feet HK$2,300 HK$2,200
— Level 3 (note i)

BB ML BOA FEHRBEMEE 2,200~ 2,000/87T—
— AR (Htazi) 2,300 2,200/87T
— =&

Mainland China Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate 4% - 5% 4% - 5%
— Commercial properties approach per annum (note ii)

— Level 3

B RE WABAREE FEENMER (Hatii) 4% - 5% 4% — 5%
—ARYE
— =%

Notes: T

i The higher the gross unit rate per square feet, the higher the i

fair value.

ii. The higher the capitalisation rate per annum, the lower the ii.

fair value.

ST R BB BEDE -

SEANMC R

AT -

NFEMUE
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19. Prepaid Land Lease Payments 19. FE{ST LB EFRIE
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—F-mFE T =F
HK$7000 HK$000
FHETT FET
Cost: B
At 1 January n—A—H 44,316 42,673
Exchange realignment PE i, 38 % (561) 1,643
At 31 December Wn+—_A=+—H 43,755 44,316
Amortisation: B
At 1 January w—A—H 2,990 2,009
Recognised during the year F AR 907 891
Exchange realignment bEE 3 B (38) 90
At 31 December RNt+t=—A=+—H 3,859 2,990
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—RAZEAE 39,896 41,326
Current portion included in prepayments, STATENFRIE - e RHEMEK
deposits and other receivables (note 22) TRIE 2 BIEAER 0 (HYaE 22) (907) (919)
Non-current portion JEBNHAER 38,989 40,407
The leasehold lands situated in Mainland China are held BHREAE T AR B oA RE JyiR i HA AR
under medium term leases. HIFER o
20. Inventories 20. FE
Group
TEE
2014 2013
—E-mE —ET=F
HK$7000 HK$000
FHET FET
Raw materials A 38,792 49,769
Work in progress R 50,623 41,089
Finished goods SURK T 633,204 476,590
722,619 567,448
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21.

Trade Receivables

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for wholesalers, where payment in advance is
normally required. The credit period is generally for a period
of one month, extending up to three months for major
customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables by the sales department to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

21.

FEW & 7 BRFK
AEBTENCEEMFEAREPENTE
B REBERBHEBELNK -
H—RA—EA TEXPZEEHRA
EE=(EA - AEBEZHEBEIZRE 2
FENRIE - UREE B R o 8 B A5 BR i
= ARE IR B E HR AT o SR SR R AR
SEERWESERFSRZTILZ TP R
BEXPABRZ BUBEEEEESZ
R o AN 5% B30 4 5t B R E 5 BR R A
FAEEMERRIEMEENRER - &
WE 58RI AETE o

AEBRBEHHEE B 2 RKE SR
RIBBZAYZREAITAT

Group

REE
2014 2013
—F-mFE ZT=F
HK$7000 HK$000
FET TR
Within 90 days 90 HIA 85,212 83,830
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180 H 4,749 3,246
181 to 360 days 1812360 H 1,088 457
Over 360 days 360 HEA & 604 15
91,653 87,548
Less: Impairment allowance R ORER R (1,692) (472)
89,961 87,076
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21.

Trade Receivables (continued)

At 31 December 2014, trade receivables of HK$1,692,000
(2013: HK$472,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired trade receivables relate
to customers that were in financial difficulties and only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

Movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

21.

EUWE SR (&)

R-ZE—NME+_-_A=+—H KEEE
FEECETURENEREZE SERA
1,692,000/ Jt( = Z — = 4F : 472,000
7o) ° BRI B E W & 5 Bk B 38 B 7 [
HNEFE AR - BER AU D 351 FE U R

N
NI

FEUE B2 REREEZ T -

Group
EE
2014 2013
—E-mFE —FT=F
HK$7000 HK$000
FET T&T
At 1 January ®n—H—H 472 519
Impairment losses recognised/(written back)  JBEEIERER, (B E) (K7 9)
(note 9) 1,220 (47)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,692 472

An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

WIERRREZ Y E 5 BRRARE D AT I
T~

Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E—-EF —E—=F
HK$7000 HK$000
FET F#ET
Neither past due nor impaired AN EA TR ARRE 85,212 83,830
1 to 3 months past due EEaH1EAE3EA 4,749 3,246
89,961 87,076

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

REMMRBEZEREEZERIEAE
MY BENCHRCZEZEPAR -

EBHERREZERKEZRERES A
HASEABRITEBRBZBILIEFE
B - REAELR  ANMEEERLEDS
REXEE  BAEBRAERDRESTEHK
WmE - ARBEERSBERZFTEHRE
HRERAE -



EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

150

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
B ER R MIEE (48)

31 December 2014 —Z—F+=-A=+—H

22.

23.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other

22. FEATFRIE -

B R HAEW

Receivables FIE
Group Company
AEE NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—2-mE ZF--F ZF-mF —T-=F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$7000 HK$000
FAT FET FAT FET
Prepaid land lease payments (note 19) BN T EFAE (A2E19) 907 919 - -
Deposit paid and related direct cost YRR REER
for the land use right in Shandong ReMABELZER 2,666 2,700 - -
Deposits for acquisition of items of WENE - BB R EER
property, plant and equipment BEf&e 14,395 7,087 - -
Prepayments ENE 15,788 16,306 46 48
Deposits and other receivables R RAMRKHER 41,717 37,572 - -
75,473 64,584 46 48
Current portion included in ATATRREIE - RE REM
prepayments, deposits and FERMRIE 2 BV AR ER 17
other receivables (58,412) (54,797) (46) (48)
Non-current portion JERNERER R 17,061 9,787 - =

None of the financial assets included in the above balances is

either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in

the above balances relate to receivables for which there was

no recent history of default.

PSR EERBERYSORE - 5t
ALEHRNEMEERSFORBHERD
FE UK

Investments in Subsidiaries 23. RHB AR 2w
Company
AAT

2014 2013

—E-F —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$000

FET FEIT

Unlisted investments, at cost JEEMIKE - TA 381,448 381,448

Due from subsidiaries JE BT B A | 3 E 523,422 309,491
Due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE/CE (68,534) (54,146)

836,336 636,793
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free WEBAREHAEERIT 2B RTEHBE
and not expected to be settled within the next twelve months RS B4 S B R AR IR 1218 A AELR o

from the end of the reporting period.
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23. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

23. RHB AR 2w @)
FEMBRARMFFBOT

Place of

incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of

registration and fully paid share/ equity attributable
Name business registered capital to the Company Principal activities
BETK
&L BRBRB/
2% AR 5 HEMER ARAEEEEED L TEEK
2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F
Embry Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding
ZHRFEMNERAR &t 10078 7T iha=gedie
Embry (Changzhou) Garments Ltd. PRC/ RMB136,200,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
(“Embry CZ")** Mainland China ~ AR® 136,200,000 75 ladies’ brassieres, panties,
ZHIE (BM) REBBR AR R KR swimwear and sleepwear
(TZFFT M 1) = BERBELIMmE -
A KK R
Embry (China) Garments Ltd. PRC/ HK$11,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
(“Embry SZ")** Mainland China 11,000,000 7% 7T ladies’ brassieres, panties,
ZHF (FE) REBR AT HEL B AR swimwear and sleepwear
(TZFFRIN]) ** SUERBRLIEME -
A KRR EER
Embry (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 Trading of ladies’ brassieres,
(“Embry HK") ) HK$45,000 panties, swimwear and
ZHF (BE)BRA *Non-voting deferred sleepwear
(IRFFEE] HK$4,500,000 BEXIEIE - P
gl KT R R
45,0007 7T
*ERFRETER
4,500,000/ 7T
Embry (Macau) Fashion Company Macau MOP100,000 100 100 Trading of ladies” brassieres,
Limited (Embry (Macau) BP9 100,000 294 panties, swimwear and
Pronto A Vestir, Limitada) sleepwear
Z#75 (RF) BRARADA BERELMWE - Wi -
KT B R
Embry (Shandong) Garments PRC/ US$18,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
Limited (“Embry SD")** Mainland China 18,000,000 370 ladies’ brassieres, panties,
ZHRF (LR) REBR AR R BR B swimwear and sleepwear
(TZHF IR ) REREELMWE
P KK B
Embry (Shanghai) Company PRC/ HK$238,000,000 100 100 Design, research and
Limited (“Embry SH")** Mainland China 238,000,000 7% 7T development and trading
2R (L8 BRAR BB K BE of ladies’ brassieres,

([RFFT L8 ])

panties, swimwear and
sleepwear

Rt BR - HER
BELMNE -
P - KR RER
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23. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Z

23. RSB AR &R @

TEZMBATEBNOT : (F)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
registration and fully paid share/ equity attributable
Name business registered capital to the Company Principal activities
BRITR
AL, BERS
1 AR R A i B HEMER ARRAEERSEE FREK
2014 2013
—B-mE —T-=F
Embry Garments Limited BVI US$1 100 100 Investment holding
RBEZES 1%X7T REER
Embry Group Limited (“EGL") BVI US$472 100 100 Investment holding
REBRIHS EES BAZR
Embry International Limited BVI US$1 100 100 Investment holding
ZHRSERAERAA RBEZES e REER
Gallin Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
EERABRAAF BE 2ETT REERK
Prime Force Advertising Limited Hong Kong HK$20 100 100 Property investment
BB 20/87T NERE
Whistleblower Limited BVI US$1 100 100 Holding of trademarks
RBRIRE 1% RERR
S The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends & A 1R 52 AR AP AL R0 A I 7 R R M ER R
(other than for any financial year during which the net profit of (R & F)55 & 8 A (7K 8 89 48 7| # 18
Embry HK available for dividend exceeds 1,000,000,000,000 & 7T B9 1 (a] 81 I FF /&
HK$1,000,000,000,000), no rights to vote at general meetings BoN) RIRE X & FIRERREBE
and no rights to receive any surplus in return of capital in a 1 BR B 500,000,000,000,000;% 7T iR [0
winding-up in respect of the first HK$500,000,000,000,000. BB E R o
o Embry CZ, Embry SZ, Embry SD and Embry SH are registered > LZHIS EIN - ZFE R - LFF LR
as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law. R ZFHF_E/GIGIRIEF BLE et i 32
ShERZE -
Except for EGL, all of the above subsidiaries are indirectly BREGLAN - FitFRBKME AR B AR T

held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of

the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

RERA -

ERFBIAA AN BT HEFRBLA
FERAAESYEABRAREEEF
EEALEZHBAT - EFRBMIHH
B A R FEE 31 - AR SRR
BRI -



RHRIFTIEIRBR AT £ 2014

153
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
+ 2y (4=
B aR M st (&)
31 December 2014 —ZE—WE+—-A=+—H
24. Cash and Cash Equivalents 24. IREREELEEY
Group Company
rEE NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EF-NFE —T-=F =F-OF —T-=F
HK$7000 HK$000 HK$7000 HK$000
FET TrET FET T
Cash and bank balances & MIRTTH R 180,105 346,327 44 364
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances AEERREPRFREERAUAARKHEZ
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to R& RRITHERA 165,792,000 8 T (=F
HK$165,792,000 (2013: HK$321,111,000). RMB is not freely — =4 :321,111,000 L) - ARBERD
convertible into other currencies; however, under Mainland T EBEBAEEMEE - MRS B AR
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and ZONEEEAEHE] - A R AETE - EIE MATIE
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign ERBRE  ASEEREZBEREETIN
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange EXZFEBRITBARKIBREME
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct H o
foreign exchange business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily IRITERRBEFERTERNEEE 2T
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are normally A EFR - BREMEHFEIRAT TFEAH
made for varying periods of between approximately one day HA—RZE=EATE BILEEERZ
and three months on average depending on the immediate Re®mKME  WREEZEHTEHFER
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the MEETR o RITAESRTF NI BN BEL
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances SR BB RIFIRTT -
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default.
25. Trade and Bills Payables 25. ENEZEARNEMNERE

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is

AEBRNBEHREE R 2 BN E SRR
RENEBERBEEZAHIREITNOT

as follows:

Group

AEH
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
HK$7000 HK$000
FET FEIT
Within 90 days 90BN 119,053 77,213
91 to 180 days 912180 H 21,030 7,051
181 to 360 days 1812360 H 1,805 4,098
Over 360 days 360 HEA 4,639 783
146,527 89,145

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 30 to 90 days terms.

ERNBEZHRARLTEE - —RN30E90H
MAEE °
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26.

Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings 26. FTEIRITER
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—B-RE “E-=F
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity HK$/000 interest rate Maturity HK$'000
BRR= BRI
(%) HHA THET (%) 3# A TAT
EBR1
FXHFE+1.08%
EBR1 BARIT
FEFE+250 RAEHE+1.082
Hong Kong Interbank BARIT
Current U8 Offered Rate %5 +2.25
Bank loans RITER (“HIBOR")+1.08 to 2015 HIBOR+1.08 to 2014
—unsecured  EER HIBOR+2.50 “E-1f 90,639 HIBOR+2.25 —T-|F 56,750
ERET BBRIT
F¥FE+1.08E RAZHE+1.082
EBET BBRIT
Non-current FDH F%#7 54225 2016-2019 RIS +2.25 2015-2016
Bank loans RITER HIBOR+1.08t0 ~ =—F-~EZ HBOR+1.08t0 ~ —F—A%%
— unsecured BER HIBOR+2.25 —E-fE 94,361 HIBOR+2.25 ZERE 65,000
Group
AEE
2014 2013
=E-mFE —F=
HK$7000 HK$000
FET FET
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: RTFIERER ZRITER
Within one year —FN 90,639 56,750
In the second year EF 41,028 41,750
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZEERF (BREREE) 53,333 23,250
185,000 121,750
Less: Amount repayable within one year B R—FERERILINA
and classified as current portion ﬂiﬁﬂﬁﬁ D H) & RE (90,639) (56,750)
Amount classified as non-current portion 5 RIERNEE DB & FR 94,361 65,000

The above bank loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The bank loans are supported by corporate guarantees given
by the Company, and bear interest at rates ranging from
1.08% to 2.50% above the HIBOR per annum (2013: 1.08%

to 2.25% above the HIBOR per annum).

ERSBITERABILEE - AR RIERE
TEFREARER I?ﬁz?%fﬁﬁﬂ%
P EEFEMT OSEiz S0ERTE(ZE
—=F: BEBRTRAEREFNEM
1.08@:2.251_&' )
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27.

Other Payables and Accruals 27. HAMEARIE R ESTRIE
Group Company
REE NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EF-NFE —T-=F =F-OF T =F
HK$7000 HK$000 HK$7000 HK$000
FET TrET FET T
Other payables H h fE {5/ 96,355 100,249 - -
Accruals JEETFIA 125,988 133,723 7,593 8,517
222,343 233,972 7,593 8,517
Current portion included in  &F AE fth &+ Z08 K
other payables and accruals  FETFUE ) ENER R (D (222,343) (210,126) (7,593) (8,517)
Non-current portion JEBNHAER 19 23,846 - =

Other payables of the Group at 31 December 2013 included

a subsidy of RMB18,600,000 (approximately HK$23,846,000)

(the “Subsidy”) received from the People’s Government of
Jinan, Shandong Province, the PRC, for the construction cost
of basic infrastructure incurred by the Group (“Shandong
Factory Phase Il Development”). During the year ended 31
December 2014, the Subsidy was transferred to property,
plant and equipment to offset the construction costs incurred
by the Group upon the completion of Shandong Factory
Phase Il Development.

The amounts totalling HK$8,839,000 (2013: HK$7,904,000)
included in other payables of the Group were due to related
companies as at 31 December 2014. These balances were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable in accordance with
normal trading terms (note 13(a)(i)).

Other payables are non-interest-bearing.

AKEBR-_ZT—=F+-_A=+—HzH
HENFEERFEILREEEMAR
BB EBAEER® I LRBE —HERE
(MHLRBRE — BAEE R ) B A A AN AR pE 5
ExRAzBBE(HEMD BAR
18,600,000 7T ( 4723,846,00078 7T ) ° & &
—E-—NE+-A=+—BIFE %@
MEEREYE BB REHE - UWEHEA
£ 8 L ERBE BB E FTEE £ AR SR o

&R B A E Ath JE A FOAFT 2 5 /9 8,839,000
BT (ZZFE—=4 :7,904,000/87C) BR—
T—E+—-A=+—BENEEQARZ
I8 ZEEHAEER  SEREE—
M E B BREE (HFE13@)i) °

HAt BRSNS
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28. Deferred Liabilities 28. IRIEBE
Deferred liabilities represent the estimated provision in respect EitaEEs s RS NEE s EEH
of long service payments which may become payable in the Ri&4 2 Gt - RHERE SO LEIR
future under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance to BEREEEEIENIZEERAEE ZEEM
employees in proportion to their periods of services with the AEES T o

Group up to the end of the reporting period.

Group
AEH
2014 2013
—F-mFE  —FT—=
HK$’000 HK$000
FET TR
At 1 January n—A—H 3,879 4,037
Provision/(write-back of provision) FEBE/(BERED)
for the year (note 9) (H1at9) 368 (55)
Payments during the year FEF 2R 177) (103)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 4,070 3,879
29. Deferred Tax 29. IRIEBIIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during FRRLEHRBRBENEEZBINT
the year are as follows:
Group rE
Withholding
Depreciation taxes on
allowance in undistributed ~ Temporary ~ Withholding
excessof  Unrealised profitson  difference taxes on Deferred
Revaluation related profit of PRC  of provisions interest subsidy
of properties ~ depreciation inventories  subsidiaries and accruals income income Total
FERRE FEHELR BER
gl ] RER  ROWEF o HE FIEBA 13
MREM i FRER ZENE 2ERER 2R FRBA EH

HK$/000  HKS$000  HKS$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
FET AT FET TET TRAT TET TET TET

At 1 January 2013 R=F—=%—R-A 1,852 1,399 (12,658) 27,812 (14,854) 170 - 3,721
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to £ RZEM R NG /(%)

the income statement ZEERR (Mt 12)

during the year (note 12) - 100 (10,444) 5473 (7,861) 244 = (12,488)
Payments during the year FRZH - - - (7,806) - (177) - (7,983)
Exchange realignment 3T 71 - (621) 1,042 (673) 10 - (171)
At31 December 2013 and R=E—=F+-A=t-H

1 January 2014 —E-mE-A-R 1,923 1,499 (23,723) 26,521 (23,389) 247 - (16,921)

Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ FREMFEXIR /(H4)

the income statement ZEERR (Mt 12)

during the year (note 12) - 99 (11,652) 10,272 (7,258) 459 (6,704) (14,784)
Payments during the year FRZH - - - (8,054) - (442) - (8,496)
Exchange realignment B (25) - 300 (335) 296 ® - 233

At31 December 2014 R-E-ME+=A=+-H 1,898 1,598 (35,075) 28,404 (30,350) 261 (6,704) (39,968)
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29.

Deferred Tax (continued)
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

IERERIE (4)
AR 7 S SR ET IS B SR T S 2 BRI
LR :

2014 2013
—E-NF T
HK$7000 HK$000
FET FAET

Deferred tax assets recognised in the RER A MBI R TR IR AT
consolidated statement of financial position — F#IE&E & (72,129) 47,111)

Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RERE B IS AR R FERR

consolidated statement of financial position ~ FIE&E 32,161 30,190
(39,968) (16,921)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$125,599,000 (2013: HK$87,087,000) that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group
also has tax losses arising in Macau of HK$6,291,000 (2013:
Nil) that will expire in two years for offsetting against future
taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in the Company
and subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective

from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied
if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rates are 5% and 10%. In estimating the
withholding taxes on dividends expected to be distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the directors have
made assessment based on the factors which included
dividend policy and the level of capital and working capital
required for the Group’s operation in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with these subsidiaries in Mainland
China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately HK$11,709,000 (2013:
HK$9,611,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

K%lﬁéi&%?zzmﬁﬁéﬂa 4
125,599,000 ( = T — = &F:
87,087,000/%70Tﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁt%&%&i)&ﬂé
RNA)Z AR PE R i ] o AN B IR AL )R T
EARIIAETE6,291,0008 L( — T —=4F :
/) BRMERER - AIREELEEBEA
AIARRERT G - ARZEEEIIRE
BERFEBE —BNEZARTKKTBAR
B R BTG H ERT R A A 8 A
RIEEE MU ERZEEIEERARLER
HEE °

RIE R B ZERSRUE - R BIREER S,
Z%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%l&ﬁ%*mZhgﬁ%
MN10% 2 TEHIF - BEARER =TT /N\F
—A—BEEW BEAN_ZTTLF
+TZRA=1+—BBZEF o i B AR
SNEIE B B AT Al AR E] A B IEIRA -
RE A 2 BB R Al REBRE © BN B
MmE - WABREE%N10% - HeZE
REBERER B ARBEHRER=-F
ZENFE— A —BRITEENETM D IR
ERTEHNE  EZ52REBEEEREBUR
MAEBRAI BB REEMENERARE
BEe/KFEERERIELTG -

R-E—OF+_—_A=+— HAFZ
A B K BE /O BT B A RIAE B ﬂi ERIE L
REABENERAEAZB26 X405
11,709,000 7L (= Z — =4 : 9,611,000
BIT) e

R A ) L AR SRR A S B £ Y S (R AR B
BHRBBRER -



EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

158

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

g ETE A

31 December 2014 —Z—F+=-A=+—H

30. Share Capital

30. BRAS

31.

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=fF
HK$7000 HK$000
FET FET
Authorised: JRRE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000 fi%
HK$0.01 each BAREEO0.01 B ITH) E @R 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
416,661,000 (2013: 416,661,000) 416,661,000 % (=F—=
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 416,661,000 i) B EE
0.01 B ITH) EimAx 4,166 4,166

Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 18
December 2006 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group.

Share Option Scheme

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include, (i)
any employee (whether full time or part time, including
directors but excluding any non-executive director) of the
Company, its subsidiaries or invested entity; (ii) any non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, its subsidiaries or invested entity;
(i) any supplier or customer of the Group or any invested
entity; (iv) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group or
any invested entity; (v) any shareholder of any member of the
Group or any invested entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any invested entity; (vi)
any advisor (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of the Group or any
invested entity; (vii) any other group or classes of participants
who have contributed or may contribute by way of joint
venture, business alliance or other business arrangement to
the development and growth of the Group; and (viii) any
company wholly-owned by one or more eligible participants
as referred in to (i) to (vii) above. The Share Option Scheme
became effective on 18 December 2006 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a period of ten
years to 17 December 2016.

31.

M EET Sl

ARARZEEAF+=A+/\R AR
e st E) (IR E) > AHAREN
RUMEH ARG A A2 REREEDR

AR ESTE

BB SN A BRI EERIEOART] -
HH B ARk ATRE A R 2 B sk 5k
BES (BREE  BFeEIMIERTE
£):()ARA - EBRARHMEER
AMERERNTES(BEBILIERTE
B) (i AEETMAKERRKIRER
AIMNEREEESRER  (vERAEREE
MR E A RREHIE - AR EMm
R R EASRAR : (v) ANE B E[]AK
BRAHTRE R R AR R KA EE
R B A RS FTIRE A B FrEs 1T (] 35
FHEAA (Vi) NEBSEMATIRE AR
ERMEGSHEREBERNEENH A
A AR (vi)) B AT RERE S B KK
B EBH A M ER M AEE
MR KIS RENEROEAEMIERR
EAE Ko (viii) B _E i 2B (i) 2 (vii) T BTt B9
— RSB AER2EEEERERNER
DAl BREFEB ST F+=A
TNBRAER - FRIFWFIHEIASTE - FAI
B RE+EE_T— X E+_-A
++8 -
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31.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders” approval in a general meeting. Share options
granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company.

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the share options, and ends on a date which is not
later than ten years from the date of the offer of the share
options or the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme, if
earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of
the share options; (ii) the average closing prices of the
Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

31.

BRETTE )

IR ERTEl(2)

B 17 60 A 1 A A 1 81 T A o B (A E
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(AR R B BT AR 1% o AL BRIk FR 2
TS B AR - R R AE
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Btk - AR o
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31. Share Option Scheme (continued) 31. FElRERE @
Share Option Scheme (continued) BE PR FEST 2 (&)
Set out below are the outstanding share options under the IUT&EHIR —E—mE+ - =+—HEE
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2014: PRAEET &I T AR TT AR IR AE
Number of share options
BREHE
Cancelled Exercise
At Granted orlapsed  Exercised At price of
Name or 1 January during during during 31 December Date of grant of Exercise period of share
category of participant 2014  theyear the year the year 2014 share options share options options
HK$
per share
R-2-MF FREH R-2-IF Bk
SRER RN -A-B FARH AR FREFE +t=A=1+-8 RRER L AR BRI |
ERET
Executive directors
HITES
Mr. Cheng Man Tai** 35,000 - - - 35,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
FERRE “2——%aAtN\B —T-—FHAT/\RE
T RFRATLR*
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza 1,460,000 = = = 1,460,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
UEELL —Z—FRATNR _T “FRATN\BE
2 RERATLAR*
Madam Ngok Ming Chu 60,000 - - - 60,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
ERRLL “F——F8A+tN\B ZE-ZF1A+N\BE
T RFRAt+tA*
Independent non-executive
directors
BUFHITES
Mr. Lau Siu Ki 100,000 - - - 100,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
AELSE “Z—&RA+tN\R ZZ——£RAt+N\BE
T RFRATLA*
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 100,000 - - - 100,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
Tk —Z—FHATNR ?' —¢£H+/\Hi
R RERATLR*
Prof. Lee T. S. 100,000 - - - 100,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
FREHR “F——%8A+N\B ZE-Z#1ATN\BE
T RFRAt+tR*
Other employees
HitfE&
In aggregate 15,680,000 - (1,650,000) - 14,030,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
&5t —T——fREATN\E ZE-ZFREATN\BZE

“Z-RERAt+tEA*

17,535,000 - (1,650,000) - 15,885,000
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Share Option Scheme (continued) 31. BEBRAETE %)
Share Option Scheme (continued) EE PR Rt 2l (&)
Set out below are the outstanding share options under the UTEHIR —E—=F+=—_F=+—HE
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2013: PRAEET &I T AR TT AR IR AE
Number of share options
RBRERA
Cancelled Exercise
At Granted  or lapsed Exercised At31 price of
Name or 1 January during during during December Date of grant of Exercise period of share
category of participant 2013 the year the year the year 2013 share options share options options
HK$
per share
] RZB—=% FREH RZB—=% - e
SEELZ IR —A—-B FRRH FERM FREAR +-A=t+—H BRERT A TR 178
SRET
Executive directors
HITES
Mr. Cheng Man Tai 35,000 - - - 35,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
BEFEEE “Z——FRATNR ZE-—FRATNEE
T RFRATLR*
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza 1,460,000 - - - 1,460,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
BEELL “F——F8A+tN\B ZE-—FRATN\BE
B NFAAtTEA*
Madam Ngok Ming Chu 60,000 - - - 60,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
ERRLL —Z—41A+N\B ZE-Z#1A+/N\BE
“E-RERATLA*
Independent non-executive
directors
BUFHTES
Mr. Lau Siu Ki 100,000 - - - 100,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
SRR R “Z——FRA+N\R ZE-—FRATNEE
R AFRATLA*
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 100,000 - - - 100,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
FHkEE “F——%8A+tN\B ZE-ZF1ATN\HE
B RFRAtTLA*
Prof. Lee T. S. 100,000 - - - 100,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
FREHR “F——4%8A+N\EB ZE-—#7A+N\BE
2 AFRATEA*
Other employees
HfbfEE
In aggregate 16,607,000 - (927,000) - 15,680,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
a5t “Z—FRA+NR T —FRATNEBE
“BERFRATLA*
18,462,000 - (927,000) - 17,535,000
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31.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes to the reconciliation of share options under the Share
Option Scheme outstanding during the year:

* The share options are vested to the grantees in the following
manner:

= 30% of such options were vested on 18 May 2012
with an exercise period from 18 May 2012 to 17 May
2016;

- 30% of such options were vested on 18 May 2013
with an exercise period from 18 May 2013 to 17 May
2016; and

- the remaining 40% of such options were vested on
18 May 2014 with an exercise period from 18 May
2014 to 17 May 2016.

o Mr. Cheng Man Tai resigned as an executive director of the
Company on 24 March 2014 and has been engaged as a
consultant of the Company for a term of one year with effect
from 25 March 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, 20,355,000 share
options were granted and their fair value was estimated at
approximately HK$41,952,000 (approximately HK$2.06
each). The Company recognised a share option expense of
HK$754,000 (2013: HK$6,663,000) during the year.

The fair value of the share options was estimated as at the
date of grant, using a binomial model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) 1.5
Expected volatility (%) 52
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.64
Expected life of options (years) 5
Exit rate — directors (%) 0
Exit rate — staff except directors (%) 14

Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 5.24

31.

BRETTE )

BBRETTE(8)

BB A S B T 14 SR 1T 168 A B AR HE T B
B :

© ERERNTIRBETAEA

= ZEBRENONER =T
——FRA+N\BEB 17
Hﬁﬁ"z TZ——FRA+N\BE

T RNFRA++EH:

- ZEBRENIONE R -Z
—=ZRABt+N\BEB 17
HE-_ZE—=FRA+/\B=ZE
—E—XFRA++H &

- ZEBRENBRT40%ERZ
T-MERATN\BHB " 17
FHA-ZT—MFEAAT+N\R
E_E—XFRA+LER-

** BHEREEN -_ZT-—NF=A-+H@A
BEARBATEEZR A5 -F
—NFE=A_+HAREZERARA
BRAH—F -

HE_TZ——F+-_A=+—HI1 " R
BB PR AE 5T 214% 20,355,000 17 B A% 8 &2 H
NE G E 4 541,952,000 7T (& 15 8
fR#E#)2.0657T) ° ANA BN FE AR ﬁ%ﬂx

M %754000%8 t( = T — =
6,663,000 7T) ©

BRENAFEDER ZBEARARR S
BEETTRE - YEF MZFBRER L
BRI AR - TRIEERZEAH
FTAIER ¢

AR B (%) 1.5
%Hﬂ»ﬂ% %) 52

% T 2K (%) 1.64
E%Hx%%ﬁﬁlﬁﬁxﬁz,ﬁﬂ(@ 5
MKE_EE (%) 0
MAE_BRERINIE T (%) 14

IFEFARRE (BRET) 5.24
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31.

Share Option Scheme (continued) 31. BEBRAETE %)
Share Option Scheme (continued) BERRfECTE (&)
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the FEHR R IR R LR 2R F SO g B A R AR gt
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may B RVER » JRAJGE B R & BRI o 517
also not necessarily be the actual outcome. The exit rate is KRTIEBE T BERAERNES EE
based on the historical data on staff/director turnover rates. =HHE o
No other feature of the share options granted was = N (B B B A EL b BT SR M B R R
incorporated into the measurement of fair value. A o
The following share options were outstanding under the Share AT ARERNBRRESTZE T S RITEN
Option Scheme during the year: R R
2014 2013
—E—0F —F—=
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise of share exercise of share
price options price options
HK$ HK$
per share per share
InEEFH 15
TEE BRERE 1THEE BEREHE
FRET BRGET
At 1 January n—HA—AH 5.24 17,535,000 5.24 18,462,000
Cancelled or lapsed FAFIH KRR
during the year 5.24 (1,650,000) 5.24 (927,000)
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 5.24 15,885,000 5.24 17,535,000

No share options were granted and exercised during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
15,885,000 share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme. The exercise in full of the share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in
the issue of 15,885,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of approximately
HK$159,000 and share premium account of approximately
HK$83,078,000 (before issue expenses).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period and at the date
of approval of these financial statements, the Company had
14,545,000 share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 3.49% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at that date.

FREBAR I RITERBRE -

RBEHEEER XARESR
15,885,000 17 B AR #EFTEI T 2 ) R1TF
A - BIBARRIBEMRAERE 20
TEZEEREEBEAR R EINET
15,885,000 % I 38 I LA} = A BEAMNIR AN 49
159,000% 7t & % 17 )% B BR 49 83,078,000
BT (FOBREITHRISZAD) ©

WEBBEE R 2% R E LS5 ®
RE B ADQBHEA 14,545,000 17 B A% #E
BT Z M ARITEBIRRE - (EA R RZ
HEIE B/ TAR AN %Y 3.49% o
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32.

Reserves

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents (i) the
excess of the nominal value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation of
certain members of the Group which took place on 31
December 1992, over the nominal value of EGL’s
shares issued in exchange therefor; (ii) the premium
arising from the shares issued by EGL for settlement of
the amount due to the ultimate holding company of
HK$15,841,000; (iii) the premium arising from the
acquisition of Embry HK from the non-controlling
interests of HK$5,000,000; and (iv) the excess of the
nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation, over
the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange therefor and the then existing
10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each credited as fully
paid at par.

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable
in the PRC, subsidiaries of the Company established in
the PRC are required to transfer a certain percentage of
their profits after tax, if any, to the enterprise expansion
and statutory reserve funds, which are non-
distributable, before profit distributions to
shareholders. The amounts of the transfers are subject
to the approval of the board of directors of these
subsidiaries.

The Group applied the transitional provision of HKFRS
3 which permits goodwill in respect of acquisitions
which occurred prior to 1 January 2001, to remain
eliminated against the consolidated reserves. The
amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated
reserves, arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries
prior to 1 January 2001, was stated at cost, which
amounted to HK$3,168,000 (2013: HK$3,168,000) as
at 31 December 2014.

32.

#iE
(a)

REE

BB BB A E R SN
RASBESTIRAHRENGAE
HAEEBERN -

REBEZBBRIEGREBEEZAR
—NWh—F+-A=+—BKER
SEETHKERR  ZEZEKERQR
A% (7 #9 T BB Tt Lt 1E 3 S AR P B8
{TEGLIR DB EEZ%8 (i) EGLBE
BEXIXNRKERDR KA
15,841,000 7 7T i 3 1T 2 17 I (0 BE
ERYEE ¢ (i) FEE R R R %
75 & 7 BT = 4 % B 5,000,000 75
7 RV IREBESEEHEKERB A
AR AN EER L AN AR &R
1TLAE BRI A A% AN B /Y 3015 BA
FEBEARERIEHZ®
10,000,000 % & f% FI{E 0.01 /& ST AY
EREERG -

RIFHEERBEBRG - NAF]
R BB AR AREET
B L BR LR A (A0 A ) FE R AX
RIEW &AM D KA BRELCERER
MEEREBEES(BGRTADIK) °
HRENERAGTZENBRARNE
EEHETAIEE -

AEBEHARBMEHEERSE
3RS A =TT —
F—A—RAETREMEENE
BHRBEGRSHBENLEHE - RER
GAREBRNE-_ZZ—F—H—H
AR B AR EENHESEIR
RAMNE: R=ZE—NWF+=A
=+ —H A&3,168,0008 L ( = &
— =4 : 3,168,000/ ) °
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32. Reserves (continued) 32. fFiE @)
(b) Company (b) ZARFH
Retained
Share Share profits/
premium  Contributed option  (accumulated
account surplus reserve losses) Total
REER/
Rt &aER HARR BRERE (RHER) @zt
Notes HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
i3 TET TET TET TAT TAT
At1 January 2013 W_E—=F—f— 369,644 381,248 28,759 (97,668) 681,983
Loss for the year and total EREBRERN
comprehensive expense FEXLEE
for the year = = = (9,959) (9,959)
Equity-settled share option NS 2
arrangements ERETH 31 = = 6,663 = 6,663
Share options lapsed BIRERN - - (1,119) 1,119 =
2012 final and special dividends B &R E
declared and paid T FXH
RERIBRE 15 - - - (37,499) (37,499)
2013 interim dividend “E-HhERE 15 - - - (16,666) (16,666)
At31 December 2013 R-F-=F
and 1 January 2014 +-A=1t—H
k=2-mF
-A-A 369644 381,248 34303 (160673) 624,522
Profit for the year and total FEENRERN
comprehensive income THRALE
for the year - - - 257,723 257,723
Equity-settled share option MBS
arrangements BRERE 31 - - 754 - 754
Share options lapsed BIREEN - - (2,273) 2,273 -
2013 final and special dividends ~ E &K E 3 ff
declared and paid -5 RH
REFRIRE 15 - - - (41,666) (41,666)
2014 interim dividend “E-EERHRS 15 - - - (16,666) (16,666)
At31 December 2014 i
+-A=1+—-H 369,044 381,248 32,784 40,991 824,667
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32. Reserves (continued)

(b)

Company (continued)

The profit of HK$257,723,000 (2013: loss of
HK$9,959,000) for the year ended 31 December 2014
included a dividend income of HK$264,640,000
(2013: Nil) received from a subsidiary of the Company.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
excess of the then net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company pursuant to the group
reorganisation, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor
and the then existing 10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each credited as fully paid at par. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium and contributed surplus may be distributed
to the shareholders of the Company, provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in
a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-
based payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
The amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should
the related options expire, be forfeited or lapse.

32.

EXEIC Y

(b)

VNINCITE-)
HE—_Z—NF+_-_A=+—H1t
FEFEH%F 257,723,000 L (==
—=1F : [£5489,959,0007 7T) B 1
AR B —EHE R B WEA AR B
W A 264,640,000/ T( Z & — =
Ffm) o

RARINEBBHRTIIARBIIRES
ESHENENBARNEREEF
EREARRILBEITIERRIBE
AN EE A R IZEE ARSI SR
910,000,000 f% & #% E {6 0.01 % 7T
MERRERM - RIBEFRSHESA
A% RIDREREREMBHT D
KFARABIRER - R BEREERIK
MR B BHEE - A AR MAREER
HASEBHIER -

BREFREESRLARRITED
BRENDTE  REMBRERWME
2AFARID BRER R ZHSET R
PP o &N A R E
BITEREREEROEER IR
BRBBERER - BOR MK
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33.
(a)

Operating Lease Arrangements

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 18)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to six years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due
as follows:

33.

%IE

(a)

BB

ERBHBEA

AR BRBEEEORH AR E
W (Hi3E18) - BOUNF—EX
R R TRERS ©

R¥ERRERE - RIBEAEE R
BT 2 PAIHHEEHEY » &
SERAT BH 2 KRR KEEIKAE
THEFET

Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mFE  —FT=F
HK$7000 HK$000
FET T
Within one year —FR 14,482 4,444
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_ZERLF(RREEEME) 38,709 12,546
53,191 16,990

In addition, the operating lease rentals for the use of
certain floor areas of the Group’s building located in
Shanghai are contingent based on sales of the shops
pursuant to the terms and conditions as set out in the
respective agreements. As the future sales of these
shops could not be accurately determined, the relevant
contingent rent has not been included above.

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its shops, counters,
warehouses and office properties under operating lease
arrangements with leases negotiated for terms mainly
ranging from one to eight years.

gAN - ERAKRELR LB ZET
Z 3 T2 E AR m R 2 BB D A
BB RIAEE  DHIREEH
ek T8 2 16K R AR IH IR S 2 3
EHETE - ANZE 2 RKH
EHEARELEEMET - WAMLA
MEWRBFELR -

YER A A

AEBRBESLEHNLTHEBET
B B BRERBAZTYE
HAOEZU—E N\ FEEETRER -
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33.

Operating Lease Arrangements (continued)

33.

IR AKX

HAOZH @

fie A ==¥
(b)  As lessee (continued) (b) 1EARAEBAE)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total AP HARS AL T pL L iR E AN [E]
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable TR BRI Y)  REBRUAT
operating leases falling due as follows: HEl Y AR S(EENTASAZENT
Group
REM
2014 2013
—B-mFE —T-=fF
HK$7000 HK$000
FET T
Within one year —FR 131,407 114,152
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_EEFDF(BIEEEMF) 63,722 52,765
After five years hF® 1,563 2,254
196,692 169,171

In addition, the Group has entered into agreements
with department stores to enable the Group to set up
its retail outlets therein. The operating lease rentals for
the use of their floor areas in department stores are
based on the higher of a fixed rental or contingent rent
based on sales of the retail outlets pursuant to the
terms and conditions as set out in the respective
agreements. As the future sales of these retail outlets
could not be accurately determined, the relevant
contingent rent has not been included above and only
the minimum lease commitments have been included
in the above table.

The Company had no operating lease arrangement at the end
of the reporting period.

g

Beoh s AEBMEHE ARG
FUBAEEEEEATAME
TEZ - FHEEARZIEmEmE
mER 2z ELBHBE HREBEETE
el ABEMETrBEaEE
E SRS THIRIEE BRI E

ZIERRRIGHIRTES ZHEEE
T HARZETES I RRHESE
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34. Commitments 34, HFIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the RNpEHEEER - AREBZAENT :
following commitments:
2014 2013
—F-mE  —T=F
HK$7000 HK$000
FET T
Contracted for commitments in respect BEYX BELREZ
of the acquisition of property, B ETRIAYE
plant and equipment 94,660 266,392
The Company had no significant commitment at the end of RRRRIRE A AEE B I E AR o
the reporting period.
35. Contingent Liabilities 35. HAAR
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not RBMERR > PERRP W EREBEE
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: FARBBAOT
Group Company
rEE AN
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-mFE —FT—=F ZE-0F —FT-—=F
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$7000 HK$7000
FET FAEIT FET FHEIT

Bank guarantees given in lieu AREMERERER

of property rental deposits NHR MRS PR

and utility deposits ZIRITHAR 2,196 = 2,196 -
Guarantees of bank facilities A1 B A RIRH ~

granted to subsidiaries RITRVE IR - - 185,000 121,750

2,196 - 187,196 121,750
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36. Financial Instruments by Category 36. BRSO Z2E/mMT A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RNBEEAERIRESR TAMERE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as T
follows:
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables B R EN
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—F-mFE T =F
HK$7000 HK$000
FET FET
Trade receivables EHKE%BE%’\ 89,961 87,076
Financial assets included in prepayments, PEEMNFIE ek
deposits and other receivables E@EHKMIEZ@ BLEE 6,656 5,292
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 180,105 346,327
276,722 438,695
Financial liabilities TRAE

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

BB AGTEZ MR E

Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mFE —T-=F
HK$7000 HK$000
FET TH¥T
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRERITEK 185,000 121,750
Trade and bills payables JENE 5 R R BN & 146,527 89,145
Financial liabilities included in other B R R H A 8 1 3RIE K
payables and accruals EETRIAEz & MEE 137,877 120,546

469,404 331,441




36.

37.

RHRIFTIEIRBR AT £ 2014

171
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
D ETE A
31 December 2014 —ZE—MF+-A=+—H
Financial Instruments by Category (continved)  36. ZFERIZDHZ2Em I E %)
ananC|aIas§ets SREE
Loans and receivables B2 T L
Company
AT
2014 2013
—E-F —F—=
HK$7000 HK$000
FET TFET
Due from subsidiaries A I ENGIE R 523,422 309,491
Cash and cash equivalents Re MR EEY 44 364
523,466 309,855
F}nanF7722?pH|Ues . SEaEs
Financial liabilities at amortised cost e ey I
Company
ENS
2014 2013
—F-mFE ===
HK$7000 HK$000
FET T
Due to subsidiaries JE A1 B B8 2 B kA 68,534 54,146
Financial liabilities included in other E B AL S A K
payables and accruals EErIEZEMEE 979 934
69,513 55,080
. . . o . =
Financial Risk Management Objectives and ~ 37. B EREE B ERBER
Policies
The Group’s principal financial instruments, comprise cash, ARBZIZSMTABRRERS BT
short term deposits and interest-bearing bank borrowings. The HEFFERITER - LEEMTATER
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance MERAEELERTRE - AREHH
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other rREREERAE  WERKE SRR
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and RENBESER  NEEREBKERKE

trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

/_:Eo

AEEERMTAZETERARAMEEAR -

SMNERRR - FEERBREABE SRR - E
EEHIHEEREA L ZERR 2 BR
BRERBMRIT -
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37.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group is exposed to both fair value
and cash flow interest rate risks. The Group’s exposure to
market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's bank borrowings with floating interest rates.

At present, the Group does not intend to hedge its exposure to
interest rate fluctuations. However, the Group will constantly
review the economic situation and its interest rate risk profile,
and will consider appropriate hedging measures in future as
may be necessary.

At 31 December 2014, the post-tax profit of the Group would
have been decreased/increased by approximately
HK$925,000 (2013: HK$609,000) if the interest rate has been
increased/decreased by 50 basis points with all other variables
held constant.

Foreign currency risk

The Group carries on its sales and purchases transactions
mainly in Hong Kong dollars and RMB. The Group does not
use derivative financial instruments to protect against the
volatility associated with foreign currency transactions and
other financial assets and liabilities created in the ordinary
course of the business. However, as the Group's net profit is
reported in Hong Kong dollars, there will be a translation gain
as a result of the RMB appreciation, and vice versa. The
majority of the Group’s operating assets are located in
Mainland China and are denominated in RMB.

37.

B E e EIE R £

*JYZJ_WA
ReERENERBRASBITARRKE SR
SEEMIGH R MEDORR - AEE
BAREAXAFERREREFNERR - &
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REBZBAEAEHNRITERERA o

Z N R ()

B AT - ANEEEE SRR R K
B o AT - ANK B E BT IO &
Eﬂ“ﬁ“’ﬂl‘ﬁﬁﬁiﬂ VTEEEAREEFE
B hEE LR o

A= EF TS0 LR - MATH Kt E

EREFAE RN-ZTE—NWE+-_B=+—
B RNEBKRBBERERD NG
925,000/87C( —ZZE— =% : 609,000/87T) °
FINEE | Beg
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c AEBEWENLTE SR T AREHH
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37.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and 37,

Policies (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of

MEEREEBERBE @

S LB ()

TRINTRIFEHEEEE - A EAM
AIB#EREEFTENBRT  AEBE/R
W aEF MiEaS ARBEXRIgEHREG

the Group’s profit after tax and equity (due to changes in the BEE) BT (R EBEENEENA
fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). EEEF)) o
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit after
in RMB rate  tax and equity
AR® BR B 15
ExE® - REREEM
(F&#) (B2)
% HK$000
TR
2014 —E—OF
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT ARKEE 5 23,891
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB WS T AREHE () (23,891)
2013 —ET—=F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT ARKERE 5 20,379
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB HETAAREE (5) (20,379)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification

procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and on an individual basis. Each of the
customers has been attached with a trading limit and any
excess of the limit must be approved by the general manager
of the operation unit. Under the tight control of the credit term
and detailed assessment of the creditworthiness of individual
customers, the Group’s exposure to bad debts is maintained

as minimal.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and other receivables,

arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum

exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note

21 to the financial statements.

EERR
AEEEENZREBRIFNEFETR
5 BEBEAEENRE  EAAFENUEE
FAETRINEFPYAKLBEERER
FF oo thoh - ZRER B TR A B R R TR B WK
RiEH AREHEREPRILEFIR
B OBERBECEVARIEESRU A
REAE  ANARBERZEEEDY XA
HEBEF ZEEIEHENE  HAKHE
ZERERERE o

AEEEMEREENEERREERS
MEeEFEBYREMEWGIE - BHHET5E
HWEEHNEERR  EREFRZETLR
ZREE -

EWAEEAE S EREREE SER
W2 i — i B BB R M 21
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37.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to meet all
contractual financial commitments as they fall due. The
Group’s objectives are to maintain a prudent financial policy,
to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain a
contingency plan for funding to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirement.

The Group continued to enjoy adequate cash position with
cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$180,105,000 as
at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$346,327,000).

The Group financed its operations and investment activities
by internally generated cash flows and bank borrowings.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

37.

MEEREEBERBE @

RBEE EkE

nBETRERIERERSESARNFAE
HHZ B HMBEE - AEEZ BERR
FREZeRBR  #HZRRRBKRER
MBESLLE  YREEZETTE - &
REASEABENREUNENERDES

K e

R-ZE—mE+—A=+—0 AEH#H
BHRERRESZMBERR  HIRE MR
©Z(BY/5180,105,0008 T (ZE—=4 :
346,327,000 70) °

AEBEBEEANMEEZRSRRRITE
R REEBRRELZSRHES -

RBEHREER - AEREREA LR
BENRECERAERMBEMT

Group NEH
Within
1year 1to5 years Total
—£R —EEf st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
THT T TET
2014 —E-MF
Interest-bearing bank borrowings HEIRITIER 94,360 97,824 192,184
Trade and bills payables BN EFERRENER 146,527 - 146,527
Other payables and accruals Hofth 1~ 3R08 R At 50 137,877 - 137,877
378,764 97,824 476,588
2013 —T-=F
Interest-bearing bank borrowings S ERITER 58,630 66,275 124,905
Trade and bills payables BNESERNENRRE 89,145 - 89,145
Other payables and accruals Ho e 50R K FE At 5RO 120,546 - 120,546
268,321 66,275 334,596
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37.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

37.

MEEREEBERBE @

RBEERREE)
RBEHRAEE R - AR EIRES H k8
HAZHESRAaBIHAMT

Company AAT
Within

1year 1to5 years Total
- —ZERE ast
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET

2014 —s-_m#E
Due to subsidiaries FERTHTE 2 B 50IA - 68,534 68,534
Other payables and accruals H M FIB R ERTRUR 979 - 979
979 68,534 69,513

2013 —B-Z=F
Due to subsidiaries FERTHTE A B5A = 54,146 54,146
Other payables and accruals Hth 5B KRt IR 934 - 934
934 54,146 55,080

The Group and the Company is also exposed to liquidity risk
through the granting of financial guarantees, further details of
which are disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements.

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to the owners through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance where appropriate. No change was made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt which
includes bank borrowings and equity attributable to owners of
the Company. Equity attributable to owners of the Company
comprises issued share capital, reserves and retained profits as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

HRRHEPBER AEBRAAFINE
RrEBEeRE  HiE—SHBEERY
TSR MIFESS o

EREHE
RNEBERELERUBRAEREFES
B ANTHERSBREER iERS
#H(MER) BEBANEREERK - 1
HE_Z-—"N&ER_ZFT—=F9+=_A8
=+ —HLEFE BEREARZEZE  BOK
RIZFA S o

AEEEANERERERFRETEER
TRERRARRHEE AEGERE - NAF]
B‘BEARGEBRESRRAEREBSRMN
BHEBITRA - HiELREER -
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37.

38.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and 37, BifSEEEIE B ERBEER @)
Policies (continued)

Capital management (continued) BEREE (&)

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is NATIEBEAER B R (BSRTHR
total bank borrowings divided by the equity attributable to “AEER DA BIES A FE(R AR RE) B4 R
owners of the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of N o REHKEERBHRMOT :

the reporting periods were as follows:

2014 2013
—E-NFE =
Group rEH HK$7000 HK$000
FET TR
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T BIRITIE K 185,000 121,750
Equity attributable to owners of the RREER AELEER
Company 1,744,565 1,628,246
Gearing ratio BERELX 10.6% 7.5%
Approval of the Financial Statements 38. #t/EMTEIRK
The financial statements were approved and authorised for WBmER_T—hF=-A=-+THBEEZE

issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2015. Ee b RIRE TR -
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